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(8,522.12) 30,823.01 (12,743.36) (6,584.07) 19,415.93
0.71 1.08 0.85 0.88 0.82
(5.59) 18.85 (7.38) (4.04) 11.47
(128, 249) 444,766 (11,203) 69,510 (151,954)
120,154 (446,767) 10,929 (69,551) 152,162
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(135) (442)
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12, 22, 23, 24, 26 229,946 240,971
12, 13, 22, 23, 24, 26 101,374 94,464
1 2,931 3,210
334,251 338,645
12, 22, 24, 26 1,953,086 1,588,887
12, 13, 22, 23, 24, 26 48,979 37,102
12, 14, 22, 26 422 225
1 12 41
12, 15, 26 130,640 79,253
2,133,139 1,705,508
2,467,390 2,044,153
16, 25 6,708 6,113
25 1,321 1,321
16, 25 1,694 2,289
17 10,507 8,313
20,230 18,036
12, 18, 22, 23, 25, 26 917,759 862,648
12, 19, 22, 23, 25 511,809 516,574
12, 13, 22, 23, 24, 26 125,173 90,348
1,554,741 1,469,570
12, 23, 26 494,798 267,003
12, 18, 22, 25, 26 103,327 78,104
12, 19, 22, 23, 25 262,331 186,471
12, 13, 22, 23, 24, 26 26,300 19,431
12, 20, 26 5,663 5,538
892,419 556,547
2,447,160 2,026,117
2,467,390 2,044,153
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291 (671)
12 (353,174) 147,078
12 227,795 (81,699)
12, 13, 22, 23 (18,787) (12,850)
12, 13, 22, 23 41,694 (32,338)
(51,358) 41,246
125 (10,315)
(151,954) 69,510
12, 18, 22 394,832 296,403
12, 19, 22, 23 151,180 141,840
12, 18, 22 (308,126) (399,949)
12, 19, 22, 23 (85,724) (107,845)
152,162 (69,551)
208 (41)
1y ®
225 270
14 422 225

2018 31 2017 31

(13,035) (16,394)

28,834 25,287
11 (389) (421)
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IFRS
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IFRS 4,530
3,332
IFRS 15
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IFRS 15 IFRS
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11 2017 10 2018
2017
2018 31 2017 31
(7,596) (6,898)
(526) (109)
(1,048) (862)
(80) (82)
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®) (€D)
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(279) 675
(729) 247
2018 31 2017 31
2,923 (991)
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2 -
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2017 25 24.94 2017
2018 31 2017 31
4 51
389 421
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32 )
12 41
3,210 2,535
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2,183,032 - - - 2,183,032
- 150,353 - - 150,353
422 - - - 422
127,712 - - - 127,712
2,311,166 150,353 - - 2,461,519
- - 1,021,086 - 1,021,086
- - - 774,140 774,140
- - 494,798 - 494,798
- 151,473 - - 151,473
- - 1,937 - 1,937
- 151,473 1,517,821 774,140 2,443,434
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1,829,858 - - - 1,829,858
- 131,566 - - 131,566
225 - - - 225
76,106 - - - 76,106
1,906,189 131,566 - - 2,037,755
- - 940,752 - 940,752
- - - 703,045 703,045
- - 267,003 - 267,003
- 109,779 - - 109,779
- - 2,010 - 2,010
- 109,779 1,209,765 703,045 2,022,589
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34,306 35,334
23,131 17,115

4,595 3,706
150,353 131,566
50,437 22,025
61,340 49,923
34,355 33,939
748 198
4,593 3,694
151,473 109,779
2018 31 2017 31
894,144 572,620
1,563,832 1,417,926
555,497 503,607
48,100 52,215
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2,928 3,147
130,640 79,253

1SDA
315,000

2018 31 2017 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
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51,302 51,302
130.7472 119.1524
6,708 6,113

2018 31 2017 31
8,402 8,402
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1,694 2,289
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2018 31 8,261
1,063 2017 8,035
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130,688 2017 20,103
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CRO
CFO EMB

EMB
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GIRMC

GIRMC

GIRMC

CRO

GIRMC

oOoOooodn
EMB
GIRMC
GIRMC
GIRMC
EMB
EMB
GRMC GIRMC

GRMC

GIRMC

2018 31 2017 31
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2018 31 2017 31

CRM
CRM
NHI
A-
2018 31 2017 31

13 150,353 131,566

14 422 225

2,185,908 1,832,993

20 (1,937) (2.,010)
2,334,746 1,962,774

1SDA
2.3 e

2018 31
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EMB
30
@ ©))
€))
4) 5) ()
EMB NHI CFO  EMB

45.22 2017 45
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2018 31
30 90
30 90
- 8,163 27,203 89,883 464,132 608,448 1,197,829
158,656 1,121 88,625 22,615 285,244 391,658 947,919
- 116,601 380,580 - - - 497,181
- 119,611 26,929 - - - 146,540

158,656 245,496 523,337 112,498 749,376 1,000,106 2,789,469

158,656 245,496 523,337 112,498 749,376 1,000,106 2,789,469

2017 31
30 90
30 90
- 7,700 18,718 72,344 457,917 564,038 1,120,717
177,690 7,265 2,601 13,494 359,635 224,133 784,818
- 96,230 171,255 - - - 267,485
- 224,200 - - - - 224,200
177,690 335,395 192,574 85,838 817,552 788,171 2,397,220

177,690 335,395 192,574 85,838 817,552 788,171 2,397,220
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2018 31
30 90
30 90
22,449 1,862 3,606 15,008 53,756 106,823 203,504
22,449 1,862 3,606 15,008 53,756 106,823 203,504
- 322,876 119,034 9,647 117,996 254,358 823,911
- (322,343)  (118,049) (4,899)  (104,195)  (146,499)  (695,985)
- 533 985 4,748 13,801 107,859 127,926
22,449 2,395 4,591 19,756 67,557 214,682 331,430
2017 31
30 90
30 90
27,399 1,627 3,205 14,080 51,917 109,333 207,561
27,399 1,627 3,205 14,080 51,917 109,333 207,561
- 333,309 188,389 15,255 111,093 133,005 781,051
- (332,523)  (186,665) (5.615)  (66,712)  (120,213)  (711,728)
- 786 1,724 9,640 44,381 12,792 69,323
27,399 2,413 4,929 23,720 96,298 122,125 276,884
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2018 31
229,946 226,013 -
917,759 861,392 -
2017 31
240,971 232,305 -
862,648 805,719 1,276
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2018 31 2017 31
150,353 89,629 60,724 131,566 87,824 43,742
22,866 13,983 8,883 19,033 17,644 1,389
65,455 19,360 46,095 56,378 18,486 37,892
34,306 28,593 5,713 35,334 30,874 4,460
23,131 23,131 - 17,115 17,115 -
4,595 4,562 33 3,706 3,705 1
150,353 89,629 60,724 131,566 87,824 43,742
151,473 90,165 61,308 109,779 65,539 44,240
50,437 41,554 8,883 22,025 20,636 1,389
61,340 14,661 46,679 49,923 11,533 38,390
34,355 28,642 5,713 33,939 29,479 4,460
748 748 - 198 198 -
4,593 4,560 33 3,694 3,693 1
774,140 738,908 35,232 703,045 655,752 47,293
925,613 829,073 96,540 812,824 721,291 91,533
2018 31

43,742 44,240 47,293

17,820 17,922 1,394

- - 8,158
(3,509) (4,159) (2,203)

6,814 8,002 12,246
(4,143) (4,697) (31,656)

60,724 61,308 35,232

33,109 (32,534) 519
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2017 31
38,649 38,142 38,239
&) 1,955 1,361 (402)
- - 38,600
492 2,070 (30,388)
6,205 6,230 1,550
(3,559) (3,563) (306)
43,742 44,240 47,293
4,763 (5,473) (775)
(€D
2018 31 2017 31
2.5 2018 31
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2018 31 6,814 2017 6,205
8,002 2017 6,230
6,431 2017 6,196
6,431
2017 6,196
2018 31 4,143 2017 3,559
4,697 2017 3,563
3,040 2017 2,245
1,300
3,040 2017 2,249
1,300
PCVG
PCVG
PCVG CFO
CFO
MVG

MVG CRO
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Independent Price Verification Processes 1PV

1PV

1PV

PCVG MVG
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2018 31
(O]
8,883 8,883 Discounted Cash %) 14.92-15.54%
Flow (DCF)

46,095 46,679  DCF 0.17-2.93%
%) 11.22-15.58%
(bp) 33.48-62.41
-0.25-0.98

(-1.0 to 1.0)
5,713 5,713  DCF 0.00-5.64%
%) 7.31-50.94%
-0.75-0.89

(-1.0 to 1.0)
33 33 DCF 0.15-1.00%
35-35%
- 35,232 DCF 0.17-2.61%
%) 11.22-15.54%
(bp) 33.48-54.98
-0.25-0.89

(-1.0 to 1.0)

60,724 96,540
2017 31
(]

1,389 1,389 DCF ) 15.01-15.63%
37,892 38,390 DCF 0.13-3.04%
%) 12.42-15.63%
(bp) 38.44-61.47
-0.51-0.98

(-1.0 to 1.0)
4,460 4,460 DCF 0.00-5.31%
%) 7.90-61.08%
-0.76-0.96

(-1.0 to 1.0)
1 1 DCF 0.15-0.85%
35-35%
- 47,293  DCF 0.13-3.04%
(%) 12.42-15.61%
(bp) 38.44-61.47
0.35-0.88

(-1.0 to 1.0)

43,742 91,533

@
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2018 3 31

4,005
38,414
1,876
44,295
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625 2017 1,264

2018 31 2017 31

1,264 710

95 908

(734) (354)

625 1,264

2018 31
() @ ®

67,382 - 67,382 (65,649) (1,733) -
202,647 - 202,647 - - 202,647
19,220 - 19,220 (16,692) - 2,528
289,249 - 289,249 (82,341) (1,733) 205,175
141,895 - 141,895 (82,341) (59,554) -

141,895 - 141,895 (82,341) (59,554) -
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2017 31
() @ ®

68,683 - 68,683 (65,734) (2,010) 939

358,292 - 358,292 - - 358,292

7,710 - 7,710 (7,515) - 195

434,685 - 434,685 (73,249) (2,010) 359,426

97,232 - 97,232 (73,249) (23,882) 101

97,232 - 97,232 (73,249) (23,882) 101
(€))
@
A

I1SDA

25
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NHI
9,503 2017
1,251,400 2017
2018 31 2017
31
2017 700
2017 700
APA
7,596 2017
31 NHI 58
2018
437 2017 43
2018 31
31
31
2017 31
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2018 31 2017 31
6,708 6,113
1,321 1,321
1,694 2,289
9,723 9,723
1,021,086 940,752
917,759 862,648
103,327 78,104
774,140 703,045
511,809 516,574
262,331 186,471
494,798 267,003
494,798 267,003
2,299,747 1,920,523
2018 31
8,605 2018 31 NHI
699,300
31 NHI
NHI
739
2018 31 NHI 739
APA NHI
6,898 2018
2017 1,048
NHI
NHI 239 2017
2018
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19,070 2017 17,365
2018 31
ii.
iii. 1SDA
2018 31
67,382 141,895 2017
68,368 96,917
15 20
iv.
2018 31
2017
V. 2018 31
14,674 2017
10,894 2017 11,459
3,780 2017 2,095
vi
2018 31
2017 10 2018
2017 10
vii. 2018 31
123
2017 85
viili
ix.
15 20
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2017

13,554

31

31

31
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27
2018
2018
28 -
2018 31 2,194
2018 13

20
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expense
Met interest income

Fee and commission expense

Met trading income

Met lass on financial liabilties designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Other operating loss

Met aperating income

Salanes and social charges
General and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses

Profitiloss) before tax
Taxation benefit/lexpense)

Profiti{loss) for the year

Total comprehensive incomed{loss) for
the year

2018

207

Note Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
326 28575 25,989
3.26 (13,4800 {12 043
15,095 13,840

426 (747) (710)
L] 24473 66,071
K {26,321) {71,725)

7 {135) (442)
12 365 7,134

89 {110) (59)
10.26 (9,332) {8,028)
(9,442) [8.125)

2423 (951)

" {729) 247
2194 (744

2,194 (744)

The Campany did not have Other Comprehensive Income for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31

March 2017,

85/200
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HNon-current assets

Leans and advances to affiiates
Dervative financial assets
Deferred tax assals

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loans and advances to affiiates
Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Income tax receivable

Other assets

Total current assets

Total assets

Shareholder's equity and liabilities

Shareholder's equity
Issued and paid-up capital
Share prermium

Reserve

Retained earnings

Total shareholder's equity

Noen-current liabilities

Debt issued and other borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial lizbilities

Total non-current liabilties

Current llabilities

Borrowing from affiliates

Debt issued and ather borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value thiough profit of loss

Dervative inancial liabiities

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total kabilities

Total ghareholder's equity and liabilities

HNote

122223 2428
12,13,22,23. 24,28
11

12222426
1243.22.23.24.26
12142226
1"
121582

16,25

16,25
17

121822232526

129223325
121322232426

12,2328
1218222528

121922 2325

12,13,22,23,24,26
12,20,28

86/200

2M8 2017
Millions of JPY Milliors of JPY

220,945 240,871
101,374 94, 464
2931 3210
334,251 338 645
1,853,088 1,588,887
48,4979 37,102
422 225
12 41
130,640 70,253
2133138 1,705,508
2 457,390 2,044,153
8,708 6,113
1,321 1,321
1,694 2,289
10,507 8313
20,230 18,036
917,759 862 B48
511,809 516,574
125,173 90 348
1,554 741 1,459,570
484 798 267,003
103,327 T8 104
282 331 185 471
26,300 19,431
5,663 5 538
852 419 556 547
2 447 160 2026117
2 467 380 2044 153

oOoOooodn
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operational activities
Profit/{loss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Met profiti{loss) from financing activities
Others

Operating assets and operating habilities:
Decreasafincreasa) in loans and advances
to affiliates
Increase/{decrease) in borrowing fram
affiliates
Increase in dervative financial assets
Increase/{decrease) in dervative financial
liabilities
Decreasefiincrease) in other operating assets
Increase/{decraase) in ather operating
liabilities

Met cash flows fromi{used in) operating

activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from debt issued and other borrowing
Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at
fair value throwgh profit or loss

Redemption of debt issued and other bormowing
Redemption of financial liabilities designated at
fair value through prafit or loss

Met cash flows fromi{used in) financing
activities

Met increasel{decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Met foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 Apnl
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Operational cash flows

Interest paid
Interest recened
Taxes paid

Note

12

12
12132223

12,13.22.23

121822

12,19.2223
12,1822

12192223

14

B
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2018 2017
Millians af JPY Miliors of JFY
2194 [744)
(734) 19,803
281 (671)
(353,174) 147,078
227,795 (81,659)
{18,787) {12,850)
41,694 (32,338)
{51,358) a1 246
125 {10,315)
{151,954) 69,510
384 832 296,403
151,180 141,840
(308,126) (399,949)
(85, 724) {107,845)
162,162 {69,551)
208 (41)
(11} (4)
225 270
422 225

2018 2017
Millions of JBY _Millions of JPY.
(13.035) (16,394)
28 834 25 987
(389) (421)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Momura Europe Finance MY, (the “Compamny”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Momura Holdings, Inc.
("MHI"), a compary incorporated in Japan and listed in Japan, the United States of America and
Singapare, which is also the uitimate parent of the Comparry,

The Compary, incorparated and domiciled in Armsterdam, the Metherlands, is a limited liability compary
under the Dutch law and its regestered office is at Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 10896 HA Amsterdam,
the Metherlands (Chamber of Commerce number 33221661

The Compary's principal activity is to act as a funding entity for NHI and its subsidianes (collectively the
“Momura Group™).

The Compary’s financial statemerts for the year ended 31 March 2018 shall be submitted to the Annual
General Meeting of Sharehoklers on 23" July 2018 for adoption. The shareholder's meeting can reject
the financial staternents but cannot amend them,

2. Accounting policies
21 Basis of accounting

The financial statermnents of the Company for the vear ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS") as adopted by the European
Union ("EL"). The financial staterments have also been prepared in accordance with the requirements
in Part 9 Book 2 af the Duteh Civil Code

The financial statements have been prepared on a histerical cost basis except for derivative financial
instrumerts and financial liabiities designated at fair value through profit and loss, which have all
been measured at fair value

The financial statements are presented in Japanese Yen ("JPY") and all values are rounded to the
nearest milion " Millions of JFY") except where otherwise stated.

2.2  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires managemert to make judgements,
estmates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accomparying disclosures.

ir W fi i3l

Significant amount of judgements and estimates were applied to the fair value of certain financial assets
and financial kabilities. Vanous valuation techniques are used to determine fair values of financial assels
and financial liabilities, where these fair values cannot be derived from an active market Chsenable
market data i used in the valuation models as far as feasible. If no observable data is available, a degree
of judgement i required to determine fair values.

The Compary reviews its loans and advances at each reporting period to assess whether an
allowance for impairment should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. In particular,
judgement by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on assumptions that a
number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. A loan is
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loan, the estimated futwre cash flows of the loan have been affected.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower is experiencing significant financial
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments ar probability that the borrower will
erter bankruptey or financial re-organisation.

22 Summary of significant accounting policies
a)  Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in JFY, which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

Foreign curency transactions during the period are translated at the rates of exchange on the date of the
transaction

Subsequernt to initial recognition maonetary items are translated at closing rate and non-monetary items
at histoncal spat rate at each statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on
financial assets and financal kabities that are monetary assets and monetary liabiities are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

b) Operating income
(1) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, except for those classified as dervatives held
for trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised under
interast and similar income of Interss! and similar expense using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method.

The EIR methad is a method of calculating the amorised cost of a financial asset or liability (or a
aroup of assets and lakiities) and of allacating the interest income or inerest expense over the
relevant perigds. The EIR is the rate that exaclly discounts the expected future cash payrments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrurment, or when appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the instrument. This calculation takes into account the impact of all fees
and commissions, paid or received, directly attributable to the trarsactions, and discounts or
premiums that are integral part of the EIR method.

(i} et fees and commession income

Loan onginaticn fees are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an adjustiment to the
yield on the financial assets carmed at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Upfront fees received and paid on derivative financial instruments are recognised as part of the initial fair
walue measurement of the related financial instrument.

<) Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value. A description of the
Compamy's policies with regards to ite application of fair value measurements to significant financial
instruments is as follows:

(i) Determination of fair values and fair value measurement

The Compary measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, at fair value at each balance
sheat date, For other financial instruments which are measured at amortised cost, fair values are
disclosed in Note 23,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiity in an arderly
transaction between market participants at the measuremert date. The fair value measwement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or lability, or
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= Inthe absence of a pancipal market, in the most advantageous market far the asset or liability
The principal or the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the Company,

Where quated market prices or broker'dealer quotations are not available for financial instruments,
prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the determination of fair
value, Such inancial instruments are valued using madels with significant unobservable Inpus such
as cormelation, long-dated volatilty, or other unobservable inputs. Valuation pricing models consider
contractual terms, postion size, underlying asset prices, interest rates, dividend rales, time value,
volatility and ather statistical measurements for the relevant instruments or for instruments with similar
charactenstics. These models also incorporate adjustments relating to market liquidity adjustiments.
These adjustments are fundamental components of the fair value calculation process. The valuation
techmigue used maximises the use of market inputs and minimises the use of Company-specfic
inputs which are uncbsenvable in the market.

Valuation pricing models and their underlying assumptons impact the amount and timing of
unrealised gains and losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing models or underlying
assumptions could produce different financial results. Any changes in the fixed income, equity, and
foreign exchange and commedity markets can impact the Company’s estimates of fair value in the
future, potentially affecting trading gains and losses and also gains and losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The Company's estimates of fair value may imvolve
greater subjectivity due to the lack of trangparent market data available upon which to baze
assumptions of underlying valuation pricing models.

The Compary applies exception in IFRS 13.48 to the exposure related to market risk coming from
group of financial assets and financial liabilities consisting of hybrid instruments where embedded
derivatives are separated or fair value option ("FVC") is elected, the exposure on such instruments is
offset by the hedging derivatives.

All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instrumerts that are classified as held
for trading are recognised under Net frading ncomedioss),

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measwed or dsclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities accessible by the
Company at the measurement date,

Level 2 Cuoted prices in inactive markets or prices cantaining other inputs which are observable,
either directly or indirectly. Valuation techniques using observable inputs reflect assumptions
used by market participants in pricing financial instruments and are based on data obtained
from independent market sources at the measuwement date.

Level 3 Uncbservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement of the financial
instrument.  Valuation techniques using unobservable inputs reflect management's
assumptions about the estimates used by other market participants in valuing similar financial
instrumments. These wvaluation techniques are developed based on the best available
information at the measurement date.

For the puwpose of fair valee disclosures, the Comparny has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basiz of the nature, charactenistics and risks of the asset or lability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the

Company determines whether transfers have occurmed between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation at the beginning of each reporing period.

(i)  Recognition of day 1 gairs and losses
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The fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price (Le. the fair value of
consideration given or received). However, in some cases, the fair value at inception will be based an
a valuation pricing model incorporating only observable paramebers in the market or on ather
observable current market ransactions in the same instrument, without modification or repackaging

Valuation techniques incorporating significant unobservable parameters may also be used fo
determine fair value at incepbion. In such cases, the difference between the transaction price and
madel value is only recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognised.

(i) Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

Certain financial ingtruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss by management
when one of the following critenia iz met:

1. The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flows resulting from the financial instrument; or

2. Fair value will eliminate or significantly reduce a8 measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise result from measuring related financial instruments
on different bases; or

3. The fimancial instrument i part of a group of financial instruments both managed and
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy. Information about these financial instruments is provided internally
on a fair value basis to the Comparny's key management personnel.

The Company seeks to minimize the market rsks by entering into derivative agreements to
econamically hedge the exposures of medium term nates. The value of hedging derivative and the
associated note have the same performance which offset each other, thus by applying FVO to notes
the Comparry expects to reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation velatility,

Starting fram 1 April 2014, the Company applied FVO to all newly issued fived-rate plain vanilla notes
and hybnd instruments where the embedded derivatives are nat separated, Starting from 1 Agril 2016,
the Company adopted blanket FVO palicy for Japanese Depository Receipts, previously for which
FWVQ was elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

For other financial instruments, the Compary undertakes FVO election on an instrurment-ty-
instrumert basis. This applies to those instrumernts that meet one or mare of the above creria, where
fair value would provide a fairer representation of the risks associated with those instruments

The election of FYO must take place an initial recagnition of the financial instrument and may not be
revoked subsequently

d) Financial instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of |1AS 39 are classified either as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, financial liabilities at amorised cost,
available-for-gale irvestments or held-to-maturity investments.

The Campany determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition depending
upan the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and their charactenstics, For
hybnd instruments, the Company considers whether a contract contains an embedded derivative
when the Company first becomes party to it and determines the appropnate classification at that time.

(i) Dernvative financial instruments
Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss include derivative financial
instruments held for trading. Financial assets and financial liabilities are clagsified as held for trading if

(1) they are acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of sale or repurchase in the near term; (2)
on initial recognition they are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
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tegether and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking, or (3)
they are dervatives, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee or a designated and effective

hedging instrument,

The Company uses derivatives to economically hedge exposures such as its interest and foreign
exchange exposures. In accordance with 1AS 38, all derivatives are recagnised intially on the date
when the Campany becomes a party to the contract at fair value and subsequently measured at fair
value, with derivatives having positive fair values carried as assets and derivatives with negative fair
values carned as liabilities in the statement of financial postion,

Derivatives embedded in confracts are accounted for as separate dervatives and recorded at fair
value if (1) their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts, (2) a separate instrument with the same terms as the emibedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and (3} if the hybnd (combined) instrument iz not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or logs. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantty modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

(i} Financial liabiliies designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilties classified in this category are those that have been designated by management as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when designation results in more relevant
infermation. Instruments so designated are fied-rate plain vanilla notes, hybrid instruments where the
embedded derivatives are not separated and the instruments that meet one or more of the critena
mentioned in Mate 2.3 e) (il).

These instruments are recagnised initially at fair value and transaction costs are taken directly to the
staternent of comprehensive income. Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value and transaction costs associated 1o the financial liabilities designated at fair value thraugh profit
or loss are recognised under Nef gaindioss) on financial labiliies designated &t fair value through
profit or loss, except far the currency translation effect which is included in Nef trading incomailoss)

Loan commitments dasignated as financial liabilties at fair value through profit or loss are within the
scope of 1AS 39, These loan commitments are initially recognised on the date when the Company
becomes a party o the contract, and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
reported under Net gaindioss) on fnancial iabiities designated &t fair value through profit or loss,

()  Financial instruments at amortised cost

a8) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an aclive market. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised on the date when the Company becomes a party to the contract, including any
direct and incremental transaction costs. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are
subsequently carmied at amortised cost using the EIR method less amy allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost ig calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisiticn and includes fees that are an integral part of the EIR and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as throlugh the amorisation process.

b) Financial labiities at amortised cost
Fimancial liabiities at amortised cost include cerain bonds and notes issued and other
borrowings. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the date when the
Company becomes a party to the contract. After initial measurement, these instruments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Initial measuramant of inancial instrumants
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When a financial asset or financial liability is recagnised initially, the Company measures it at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability

Derecognition

A financial asset s derecognised when the rights to receive cash flow from the asset have expired or
when the Company has transferred its rights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by anocther from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terme of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income,

€} Impairment

The Company assesses at the statement of financial position date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset is congidered
impaired if, and only i, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and prier to the statement of financial
position date, and that loss event has had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

For loans and recenables, the amaunt of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carmying amourt and the presert value of expected future cash flows discourted at the asset's
ongiral EIR. The amount of the loss s included n the staterment of comprehansive income. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
ohjectively to an event ocowrring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment koss is reversed in the statement of comprehensive income.,

f) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liakilities are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the financial asset and financial liability and the Company intends to
settle the financial asset and financial kability on a net basis.

g) Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash fiows has been prepared using the indirect methed. Cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash in banks.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, adiustments for net prodit fram fnancing activifies are non-
Cash items which include the effects of foreign exchange results, fair value hedge basis adjustments,
amaortisation of debt issued and other borowing using the effective interest rate method and FVO
waluation

The movernant in the Defarred fax assats is included in the line item Cthers while the movement in the
income tax receivablelpayable) is included in the line items Decreasadincreass) in other cperating
assafs and Increase in cperaling Fabilties. Both these line items are presented under Nel cash flows
; in ; ..,.
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hj Taxation

Currert tax assets and liatiities for the currert and prior years are measured as the amaunt expected 1o
be recovered from or paid to the taxation autharties.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporany difference between the carrying
amaurts in the statement of financial position and the tax base, Deferred tax assets are recogrsed 1o
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be wtilised.

The tax rates and fax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted as of the statement of financial position date.

24  Operating segment

The Compary has organised its business activities based on its products and senices. As the Company
only engages in one operating segment of financing activity, the gross and net assets and profitioss
before taxation as presented in the face of the financial statements ane related to the same segment. The
majority of the debt is issued to Japanese investors, All loan payables, loan receivables and dervatives,
except for demvatves embedded in some of the medium tern notes, are transacted with the Momura
Group.

25 Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The accounting policies and estimates are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the adoption of the following amendments to standards that have become effective and are
relevant to the financial statements of the Comparty for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the policy
for determining when tramsfers between levels of the fair valug hierarchy are deemed to have
occurred. The Compary considers that the transfers have occurred at the beginning of
each quarter whereas far the previous penad the transfers were deemed to cccur at the beginning
of each half-year period. The change in policy results in reliable and mare relevant infarmation as the
transfer between levels is determined more timely. Please refer to Mote 23 for futher details. The
change in accounting policy has been appled starting from 1 April 2017, The change did not have
material impact on the statement of financial pesition and statement of comprehensive income for the
yvear ended 31 March 2017, therefore, the change in accounting policy has not been applied
retrospectively and the comparative figures have not been restated.

In January 2016, the IASE published final amendments to 1AS 12, "Income Taxes". The |ASE had
concluded that the diversity in practice around the recognition of a deferred tax asset that is related to
a debt instrument measured at fair value is mainly attributable to uncertainty about the application of
some of the principles in 1AS 12, Therefore the amendments clarify how to account for deferred taxes
related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The amendments are endorsed by EU and
effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early adoption possible.

Based on assessment made, these amendments do not have a material impact on the Company's
financial position and performance.

Amendments to IAS T - Disclosure Initiative

In January 2016 the IASB published amendments to 1AS 7, "Staterment of Cash Flow” These
amendments to 1AS 7 Staternent of Cash Flows require a disclosure of changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments are endorsed by EU and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017 with early adoplion possitle

Based on assessment made, these amendments do not have a material impact on the Company's
financial position and perfarmance as the Company provides disclosures that enable users of financial
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staterments to evaluate changes in liakidities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

26 Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these finencial statements, the following new standards and
amendments to the existing standards and interpretations that are likely to be applicable to the
Company have been issued by the IASE but not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2018:

IERS 9 Financial Instrumants

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments®, originally issued in November 2008 and finalized in July 2014, will
replace 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: recognition and measuremeant, related to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments. It sets out the new principles for the classification and
measurement of inancial instruments, for impairment for credit rsk on debt instruments measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through shareholders' equity, loan commitments given, financial
guarantee contracts, lease receivables and contract assets, as well as for general hedge accounting.
IFRS 9, which was adopted by the Eurcpean Union on 22 Movember 2016, is mandatory for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 9 does not require the restatement of comparative-penod financial statements for the initial
application of the classification and measurement reqguirements of IFRS 9, but requires additional
disclosures on transition to IFRS 9 as required under IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosuras,

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on ar after 1 January 2018, This standard is endorsed
by EU and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption
possible

Classification and measurement

From a classification perspective, the new standard will require all assets, except equity instruments
and derivalives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing
the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow charactenistics. The |AS 39 measurement
categories will be replaced by fair value through profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and amortised cost. IFRS 9 will also allow enlities o continue to irevocably designate
instruments that qualify for amorbised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
instruments as fair value through proft or loss, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an 'accounting mismatch') that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases. Equity instruments that are not held for trading may be irevocably designated as
fair value through other comprehensive income, with no subsequent reclassification of gains or losses
to the income statement.

The accounting of financial liabilities will largely be same as the requirements of |AS 39, except for the
treatment of gains and losses arising from the Compamy's own credit risk relating to liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Such movements in own credit risk will be presented in
other comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to the income statement unless such
presentation would lead to an accounting mismatch,

Financial

Based on analysed business models and characteristics of financial assets held by the Group, the
Company expect fallowing changes in the financial assets as at 1 April 2018:

- Loans and advances fo affiiales under 1AS 39 are eligible to Amortised cost under IFRS 9 and will
remain in this category under IFRS 9

- Derivative financial assefs classified as at "Fair value through profit or loss” under 1AS 39 will remain

in this category under IFRS 8. Certain embedded derivatives will no longer be bifurcated as the host
contract will be designated at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities:

The Comparry will adopt fair value threugh profit of less to an extended population in order to reduce
accounting mismateh as there are different measurement and classification categaries for nates ard
the related hedging derivatives that causes fluctuation in profit and loss. Extended adoption of FVOD
will miigate the accounting mismatsh, Upen adoption of IFRS §,

- Certain medium term notes of JPY 468 342 million under Debl issued and other bormowing will be
reclassified io Financial lisbilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. These consist of notes
measured at amorised cost while one-to-one hedge dervalives are measured at fair value and
certain notes for which the embedded derivatives were bifurcated. The impact of the extended
application of fair value option on equity will be an increase of JPY 6,225 million before tax.

- Financial iabilifies designated at far vaiue through profit or loss urder 1AS 39 will remain in this
category under IFRS 9

- Darvative fingncial Tabiities classified as at "Fair value through profit or loss” under 1AS 38 will
remain in this category under IFRS 9. Certain embedded derivatives will noe longer be bifurcated as
the host contract will be designated at fair value through profit or loss,

Impairment of financial agsels

IFRS 2 estabiishes a new credit risk impairment model based on expected losses. The standard will
replace 1AS 38's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expecled loss approach. The company
will be required to record an allowance for expected logses for all loans and other debt financial
assets not held at fair value through profit or loss, together with loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts. The allowance is based on the expected credit losses associated with the
probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increaze in credit
risk since ongination, in which case, the allowance is based on the probability of default over the
expected life of the instrument

Application of the general expected credit loss *ECL") impairment model:

Expected credit lozses should be determined using all reasonable and supporiable information which
is reasonably available at a Momura reporting date without undue cost or effort, including information
about past events, cument conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The information
used should reflect factors that are spectfic to the obligor, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the Momura reparting
date. Information that is available for financial reporting purposes is alvays cansidered o be available
without urdue cost or effort

The general ECL impaimment madel is used to measure expected credit losses against the majority of
financial instruments held by Momura which are subject to impairment though the ECL impairment
madel under IFRS 9
Expected credt losses represent the difference between the cash flows that Momura i entitled 1o
receive in accordance with the contractual terms of the financial instrument and the cash flows that
Marnura ultimately expects to receive based on following madel

The measurement of expected credt losses under the ECL mpairment model reflects

+ An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

+ The time value of money; and

+ Resscnably and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reparting date about past events, current condibions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions.
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Lifetime expected credit losses represent expected credit losses that would result from all possible
default events aver the expected life of the financial asset whereas 12 month expected credit losses

are thase life expected credit losses expected to occur within 12 manths of balance sheet date,

In order to determine whether 12 month or lifetime expected credit losses are used, each financial
asset and off-balance shest financial instrument being individually or collectively assessed for
impairment is classified at each reporting date inte one of following three stages of credit quality
deterioration since the financial assat was initially recognised.

s Stage 1 — Perdoming financial assets for which there has been no significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition;

+ Stage 2 — Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant detericration in
credit quality since inftial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

+ Stage 3 — Mon-performing financial assets for which there has been a signficant deteroration in
credit quality since intial recognition and which have become credit-impained.

A financial ingtrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is initially classified into stage 1
and is typically subsequently continuously monitored to determine whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred, at which point the financial instrument is reclassified to stage 2. A
determination of whether a significant increase in credit nisk has occurred at each reporting date will
primarily be through a comparison of Momura's internal credit rating applied to the financial instrument
at acquisttion, ongination or issuance and the internal credit rating currently assigned to the financial
instrument at the reparting date. & financial instrument will be reclassified into stage 2 where the
internal credit rating has declined by more than a specific number of notches, If there is a further
deterioration in credit risk such that the financial instrument becomes credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then reclassified into stage 3,

A stage 3 financial asset can only be classified out of stage 3 and into stage 2 or eventually stage 1
when it no lenger meets the definition of being credit-impaired, namely when it is no longer probable
that the Company will not be able to collect all principal and interest amounts due in accordance with
the original or medified contractual terms of the financial asset

A financial asset s credit-impaired when one or mare events that have a delrimental impact on the
estimated fulure cash flows of the financial asset have ccourred since arigination o purchase namely
and it is no longer prabable that the Company will be able to collect all principal and interest amounts
due in accordance with the cantractual terms of the financial asset.

The Nomwa group palicy is that a financial instrument will continue to be credit-impaired until the
obligor cures the reasons for credit-impairment or there hias been a sustained observable period of
repayment peformance on the financial instrument. Determination of what constitutes a sustained
period of repayment performance by the obligor depends on the nature of the financial instrument but
will typically be for a period of & months or more.

The allowance for expected credit losses recognized against stage 1 financial assets is determined
using 12 month expected credit losses. Conversely, the allowance against stage 2 or stage 2 financial
assels is based on lifetime expected credit losses.

The measurement of expected credit losses is based on either on either 12 month or lifetime expected
logzes of the financial asset is determined on a way which reflects all of the following basic principles:

+ An unbiased and probability-weighted amourt that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes,;

» Incorporates the time value of money; and

« Lkes reascnable and supportable information about past eventz, current conditions and
reascnable and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions.
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The measwemeant of expected credit losses through the general ECL impairment madel is typically
determined within Mamura using either a loss rate model or discounted cash flow madel depending on

the relevant staging of the financial instrument

Cash flows expected from callateral and ather credit enhancements that are integral to contractual
terms of the financial instrument and nat recagnised separately by the Company are inincluded in the
measurement of expected credit losses,

Credit-impaired financial instruments individually assessed for impaiment are typically wntten-off
when further cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonably means of
recovering cutstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is
based on factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor's financial position such
that the obliger can no longer pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be
sufficient to pay amounts due. Credit impaired financial instruments collectively assessed for
impairment are typically written off when obligors are declared bankrupt, insolvent or in equivalent
situations.

Wiite-offs are initially recognised against any esisting allowance for expected credit losses and can
relate to a financial instrument in its entirety or to a portion of it

Recoveries are recognised as a reduction of the provision for expected credit losses recognised
through eamings durnng a reporting perniod.

For stage 3 financial assets, interest income is applied by applying the effective interest rate to net
carrying amount of the financial asset namely the gross carrying amount less the allowance for
expacted credit losses.

I it

The measwement of expected credit losses thraugh the general ECL impairment madel is typically
determined withun Nomura using loss rale models or discounted cash flow madels depending on the
relevant staging of the financial instrument, A loss rate model measures expected credit losses for an
individual or partfalio of similar financial instruments through development of loss rates calculated
thraugh an estimate of the probability of default ("PD") of the abligor and lass given default ("LGDT)
which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligor at default ("CEAD").

PO inputs are determined by class of financial instrument and by internal Nomura credit rating applied
to the financial instrument. PD inputs used by the Comparny are sourced from industry data and
validated based on historical experience,

Nomura group palicy is that forward-lopking inffarmation s incorporated into the PD inputs By
forecasting economic scananes and adjusting the base case inputs for at least one more optimistic
and pessimistic scenaria,

LGD inputs are determined by class of financial instrument based on historical experience of loss and
recovery rates for similar financial instruments and ather relevant industry data. Where appropriate,
LGD inputs are adjusted to reflect the impact of collateral and other integral credit enhancements.

For revolving and non-revolving loan commitments, the relevant absolite measure of CEAD
represents an estimate of the total amount of the facility which will be drawn by the obligor by the time
of default.

The estimated amourt of credit risk provision according to IFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018 is JPY 183
milllicn before tax.

Impact on shareholder's eqiity
Thi Company will record an adjustment to its opening April 1, 2018 retained earnings and ACCI, to

reflect the application of the new requirements of Impairment and Classification and Measurement at
the adoption date and will not restate comparative periods.
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The Compary estimates the IFRS 9 transition amount will increase shareholders’ equity by
approximately JFY 4,530 million after tax,

The estimated impact of changes in awn credit on liabilities designated at fair value through prafit or
loss which will be recognised in accumulated other comprebensive income is JPY 3,332 milion. This
will be a reclassification within shareholder's equity

In May 2014, the IASE issued IFRS 15, "Revenue from Contracts with Custormers”, which specifies
how and when revenue is recognised, but does not impact income recognition related to financial
instruments in scope of IFRS HIAS 39, IFRS 15 replaces several other IFRS standards and
interpretations that currently govern revenue recognition under IFRS and provides a single, principle
based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers. The standard alzo requires
entities to provide users of financial statements with more informative and relevant disclosures. In
April 2016, the 1ASE issued clanfications to the standard, clanifying some requirements ard providing
additional fransitional relief for companies that are implementing the new standard. This standard is
endorsed by EU and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
adoption possible.

Based on assesament made, this new standard doeg not have a material impact on the Company's
financial positicn and performance
3. Interest income and expense

For the year ended

March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JPY Milliors of JPY
Interest and similar income
Leans and advances to affiiates (Mote 28) 28,573 %970
Cash collateral (Note 15) 2 19
28575 25 985

Far the year ended

March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JPY Milliors of JPY
Interest and similar expense
Debt izsued and other borrowing (2,877) {4.877)
Cash collateral received (Mote 20) [18) (1
Borrowing from affiliates (Mote 26) {10 585) (7,171}
(13,480) (12 049)

For a mybrid instrument where an embedded dertvative is separated and associated host is determined
(Refer to Nobe 2.3 for details), the dervatve i recorded ab its intial fair value ard the residual is
recognised as a host contract under Debl issued and other Borowing and accaunted for at amortised
cost Profit and loss arising from such embedded derivative at initial recognition is deferred and amaortised
over the periad of such host contract and may be recegnised as income under Inlerast and similar
expanss Income which is recognesed from the amortisabon of such host contracts resulted in Inlerest
and simifar axpanse for the year endad 31 March 2018 decreasad compared to the year ended 21 March
2017, This amouwnt included in inferest and similar expanse was JPY 2,723 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 (31 March 2017 JPY 3,436 million).

In addition, changes in market conditions of interes!, such as interest rate gap between borrawing rate
and lending rate where currencies are different, contribute to the movement in Nel inferest income:
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4. Fee and commission expense

For the year ended

March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JPY Milliors of JP°Y
Guarantee fee paid (Note 26) (747) {710}
(747) (710)

5. Net trading income

For the year ended

March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JPY Milliors of JEY
Net trading income on dervative financial
instrumerts 23,581 65,819
Net forgign exchange gains 212 292
24 473 55,071

The Compary manages the risks arsing from fluctuations such as in foreign cumency exchanges and
interest rates with the use of financial denvatives. The gains and logses on financial derivatives, which are
held for risk management purposes to offset these fluctuations, are included in Net frading income. The
movement in Nel frading income largely offsets the movement in Nelf koss on financial abilities
designaled at fair value through profit or loss (Mote §) for the hedging of financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loge and the movement in Net ntevest income (Mote 3) for the hedging of
financial products other than financial kabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Far hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are separated and measured at fair value, the
gains and losses on hedging derivatives are offset by the gains and losses on embedded dervatives. For
the instruments which are not bifurcated, the gains and losses on hedging derivatives may cause
fluctuation in the recognition of gaing and losses in el fracing income.

The vast majority of the decrease in Net frading income for the year ended 31 March 2018 compared
to the year ended 31 March 2017 is resulting from the hedging dervatives associated to the financial
liabilities desigrated at fair value through profit or less. This decrease is offset by a cormesponding
decrease in the Not loss on financial habiiites designated at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6),

Risk managernent, for information regarding the nature and extent of the Company's dealing with
fimaricial instruments, is disclosed in Nate 22

6. Met loss on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
For the year ended

March 2018 March 2017
Millians af JPY Milliors of JPY
Net loss on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
logs (26,321) (71,725)
(26.321) (71,725

Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and fransaction costs
associated to the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under
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Nel loss an financial iabilittes gesignated at fair value through profit or loss, except for the currency

translation effect which is included in Nt trading income.

The Company calculates and applies OCA based on mavements in the credit spread of the MNomura

Group, The impact of changes in own credit rsk included under Net joss on financial liabiities
j at fair value Frough profift or foss, which 15 mainly stemming from the impact of the

Marmura Group funding ability for the movernent of note currency, is JFY 8,261 millien koss for the year

ended 31 March 2018 (JFY 8,035 million gain for the year endad 31 March 2017),

This decrease in Nef logs on financial labilites designaled at fair value through profit or loss is offset
by an decrease in Nel frading income (Mate 5) resulting from the hedging derivatives associated to
the financial liakilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

7. Other operating loss

For the year ended

March 2018 March 2017
Milliors of JPY Milliors of JFY
Redeamplion loeses {137) {455)
Cthers 2 13
{135) {442)

B. Salaries and social charges
For the year ended

March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JPY Milliors of JBY
Salanes 189) (83)
Pension premium {10) (8)
Social charges and welfare {11} {8)
(110} (94)

8. MNumber of employeas

The Compary had eleven (11) employees warking in the Netherlands as of 31 March 2018 (2017; 10)
Eight (8) of the 11 employees were working part fime as of 31 March 2017 (2047 8)

10. General and administrative expenses

Far the year ended

March 2018 March 2017

Millions of JPY Milliores of JEY

Advance pricing arrangement
adustment (Note 25) {7,596) (6,598)
Sub-contractor fees (Motes 26) (526) {109)
Taxes other than income tax {1,048) (862)
Professicnal fees (80) (82)
Administrative (Mote 25) (77} (21)
Others (5 54y
(S 332) (8 025)
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Advance pricing arrangement

Acvanced pricing agreement for the avoidance of double taxation in the Netherlands and in Japan has
expired on 31 March 2012, On 30 Movember 2012, the Company filed a request to Dutch tax
autharities for a unilateral advance prcing agreement (the "Unilateral APA™), Dutch tax autharities
approved the Unilateral ARPA on 4 April 2014, The Unilateral ARPA applies exclusively to the period
from 1 Apeil 2013 up to and including 31 March 2017, with retroactive effect to 1 Apnl 2012, During the
financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Company filed a request to Dutch tax authorities for the
extension of Unilateral APA to the period from 1 Apnl 2017 up to and including 31 March 2018, Dutch
tax authorities approved the extension request on 14 March 2017. For the years ended 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2017, NHI and the Company agreed to settle the adjustment in line with the terms
of Unilateral APA. Consequently, for the year ended 31 March 2018 JPY 7 596 million (31 March
2017 JPY 6,888 milion) adjustment amount payable to NHI is included in the above account line item
advance pricing arrangement adjustment

11. Taxation

The companents of the taxation (expense)benefit for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March

2017 are as follow
For the year ended
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JEY Millions of JEY
Current tan:
Current income tax (4500 (428)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax
of prior years - -
Deferred tax:
Relating to temporary differences (2759) G675
Taxation {experse)bensfi (729) 247
For the year ended
March 2018 March 2017
Milligns af JFY Millions of JFY
Profit{loss) befare tax 2,923 (581)
At Dutch statutory income tax rate of 25% (731} 247
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of
prior years - -
Effect of permane nt difference between taxable
income and accounting profit 2 -
Taxation (expensejbenefit (729) 247

The nominal tax rate for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2018 i 25% (2017:25%) while the effective tax
rate is 24.94% (2017. 24.92%)

The movements in the income tax receivable and deferred tax assets are as follow:
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For the year ended

March 2018 March 2017

Millions of JPY Milliors of JFY
Income tax receivable
Beginning balance 41 51
Payment 389 421
Charged to income (450) {428)
Other movements 32 {3
Ending balance 12 41
Deferred tax assets
Beginning talance 3,210 2525
Increasef{decrease) related to temporary (279) &673
differances
Ending balance 2,831 3,210

Deferred tax asselz are recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amounts in the
staternent of financial position and the tax base. Deferred taxes occur due to the differences in tax
base measurement and recognition timing of taxable income. The majority of the deferred tax assels
of the Company pertain to the valuation of the dervative financial instruments and financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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13. Derivative financial instruments™

As of
March 2018 March 2017
Miligns of JPY Millians of JFY
Fositive fair values
Foreign exchange related dervatves 72 866 15,033
Interest rate derivatives 65,455 56,378
Equity derivatives 34 308 35334
Commadity derivatives 23,131 17,115
Credit dervatives 4 585 3,706
150,353 131 556
Negative fair values
Foreign exchange related dervatives 50,437 22025
Interest rate derivatives 1,340 45923
Edquity dervatives 34355 33,939
Commadity derivatives 748 198
Cradit dervatives 4,583 3,694
151,473 108 779

Above figures in tables consist of curment and non-curment denvative financial agsets and dervative

financial liabilities.

Asg of
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JBY Millions of JFY
MNotional amounts
Foreign exchange related derivatives 864,144 572,620
Interest rate dervatives 1,563,832 1,417 926
Equity dervatives 555,487 503,607
Commadity derivatives 48,100 52215
Credit dervatives 337 350 285478
3,388,923 2,841 844

All the above figures in tables include bifurcated embedded derivatives. Motional amounts of
derivatives in the above tables are presented on a gross basis.

All derivatives mentioned above, except for bifurcated embedded derivatives, are transacted with the
Nomura Group.

The Company uses derivatives for hedging purposes in the management of its own asset and liability
portfolios. This enables the Company to mitigate the market risk and interest rate risk arising from its
assets and liabilities.

Majarity of the decrease and increase in both the positive and negative fair values of dervative financial
instruments comespands to the decrease and increase in the positive and negative fair value of hedging
dervatives due to changes in the market conditions.

When calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credit and debit valuation adjuestments are taken into
account. The credit and debit valuation adjustments are minimal as the Compary exchanges cash
collateral (Motes 15 and 20).

Ench derhvative classification indudes derivatives referencing multiple sk components, For exsmple, intenest rate contracls
intude corplex derhatives referansing inberes! rate rigk as well 8% fereign exchange rick,
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14. Cash and cash equivalents

The balance only comprises of cash in banks which s unrestricted for disposal.

15. Other assets
As of
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JEY Millions of JEY
Cash collateral (Notes 22 and 25) 127,712 76,108
Others 2928 3,147
130,640 79,253

Under Intemational Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA" Credit Support Annex signed with
related parties, the Company posts Cash collaferal o derivative counterparties related to denvative
transactions. Others mainly include accrued interest income.

16. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve
The authorised share capital consists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Euro ("EUR") 454 par value per
share. The issued and paid-up share capital comprises of 113,000 shares with EUR 454 par value per

share.

Details of the issued and paid-up capital are as follows:

As of _
March 2018 March 2017
Izsued and paid-up capial at historical cost
(JPY Millions) 8402 8402
Izsued and paid-up shares (Thousands) 113 113
Par value per share (EUR) 454 454
Issued shares at par value (EUR Thousands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (EUR-JFPY) 130.7472 119.1524
Issued and paid-up capstal (JPY Milkons) & 708 113
Detaile of the reserve are as follows:
Az of _
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JFY Millicns of JFY
Issued and paid-up capital at histonical cost 8,402 8,402
Isswed and paid-up capial & 708 5113
Trarslation difference 1,684 2 289

As required by Article 2:373 paragraph & of the Dutch Civil Code the Issued and paid-up capifal
account is measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated wsing the closing rate
from EUR to JPY as of the statement of financial pogition date. The difference between the historical
cost and the carrying amourt of the issued and paid-up capital as of the statement financial position
date is recorded under Resarve account
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17. Dividends paid

Mo dividend was declared or paid during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

18. Debt issued and other borrowing

a. Mon-current debt issued and other borrowing

For the year ended
March 2018 March 2017
Millicns of JFY Millions of JEY
Beginning balance BE2 848 822557
Issues 307 400 182,284
Redemplions (137 189) (91,337
Reclassifications to current liabilities {111,557) (51,851)
Cther movernerits 13,533) 855
Ending balance 817,759 B52 648
b, Current debt issued and ather borrowing
For the year ended _
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JFPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 78,104 HE 325
lssues 87 432 114,119
Redemplions (170,927) (308,612
Reclassifications from non-current liabilities 111,557 1,851
Other movements (2 839) 4421
Ending balance 103327 T8 104

In the above tables, Ofher movements are mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange resulis
and amortisation of debl issued and other borrowing using the EIR method.

19. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

As of
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JPY Millions of JBY
Bonds and medium-term notes 774140 703,045
774,140 703,045

Above figures in tables consist of current and non-current financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

The impact of changes in OCA (Refer to Note &) is JPY 8,261 million loss during the current reporting
period and the cumulative balance is JPY 1,063 milon gain as of 31 March 2018 (2017: JPY 8,035

million gain during the prior reporting period and the cumulative balance was JPY 9,324 million gain as of
31 March 2017),

The difference between the carrying amourt and the contractually due amount for the financial
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liabilibes designated at fair value through profit or foss is JPY 130,688 millien as of 371 March 2018
(2077 JPY 20,103 millicn) .

20. Other liabilities

As of
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JFY Millions of JFY
Cash collateral received (Motes 22 and 26) 1,937 200
Cithers 3726 3528
5 B63 5 538

Under ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related parties, the Company receives Cash collateral
from dervative counterparties related to denvative transactions. Others mainly include accrued nterest
expense and other accrued expenses.

21. Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Comparny has JPY 148,540 milkon ursettled loan commitments 1o the Nomura Group companies as
of 31 March 2018 (2017, JPY 224,200 million),

22. Risk management

The Compary's risk management activiies involve both the assessment and transfer of certain risks
which the Company must manage. The most important types of nsk are market risk, credit risk, liquidity
rizk and operaticnal risk. Market risk includes currency nsk, price risk, and intenest rate risk.

The Compary's primary objective is to act as a financing wehicle far the Nomura Group. To this end,
the Comparry issues debt with retums linked to a variety of differert indices including but not limited to
equities, interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and commodities, The Company actively manages the
resultant risk using dervative financial instruments with the intention of eliminating significant market
risk arising from such instruments, The Company transacts thase dervative instruments solely with
other entities within the Nomura Group,

The Compary's financial instruments include loan advances, cash collateral deposted to or received
from other entities within the Nomura Group, debt issued and other borrowing, financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives and borrowing from affiliates,

Group Risk Appetite

The Memura Group has determined the maximum level and types of risk that it is willing to assume in
pursuit of its strategic objectives and business plan and has articulated this in its Risk Appetite
Statement. This document is jointly submitted by the Chief Risk Officer ("CRC) and the Chief
Financial Officer ("CFO") to the Executive Management Board ("EMB”) for approval

The Risk Appetite Statement provides an aggregated view of rigk and includes capital adequacy and
balance sheet measures, liquidity risk, market and credit risk, cperatiocnal nsk, compliance risk and
model risk. It is subject to regular monitoring and breach escalation ag appropnate by the owner of the
relevant risk appetite statement.

MNomura Group's Risk Appetite Statement i required to be reviewed annually by the EMB bt it i
reviewed on an ad-hoc basis if necessary, and must specifically be reviewed following any significant
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changes in Momura Group's strategy. Risk appelite underpins all additional aspects of Nomura
Group's risk managemert framework.

Glabal Risk Management Structure

Upan delegation from the EMB, the Group Integrated Risk Management Committee ["GIRMCT)
deliberates on or determines important matters concerning integrated risk management of the
Nomura Group to assure the sound and effective management of its businesses. The GIRMC
establishes Nomura Group's risk appetite and a framework of integrated nisk management consistent
with Nomura Group's risk appetite. The GIRMC supenvises Momura Group's risk management by
establishing and operating its risk management framework. The GIRMC reparts the status of key nsk
management issues and any other matters deemed necessary by the committee chairman to the
Beoard of Director and the EMB.

In additicn, the GIRMC, upon delegation from the EMB, has established the Risk Management Policy,
describing Momura Group's overall risk management framework including the fundamental risk
management principles followed by the Momura Graup.

Upon delegation from the GIRMC, the GRMC deliberates on or determines, based on strategic risk
allocation and risk appetite determined by the GIRMC, important matters conceming market, credit,
operational risk or reputational risk management of the Nomura Group in order to assure the sound
and effective management of Momura Group's businesses. The GRMC reporiz to the GIRMC the
status of discussions at its meetings and any other matters as deemed necessary by the committee
chairman.

The CRO is responsible for sefting the overall strategy and direction of the Risk Management Division.
The Risk Management Division comprises various departments or units in charge of risk management
established independently from Momura Group's business units. The Risk Management Division is
responsible for establishing and operating risk management processes, establishing and enforcing
risk maragement policies and regulations, verifying the effectivenass of risk management methads,
gathering reports from the Momura Group entities, reporing to Executive Officers/Senior Managing
Carectors and the GIRMC and others, as well as reporing to regulatory bodies and handling
regulatory applications concerming risk management methods and ather items as necessary,

Folices and procedures are essential tools of governance used by the Risk Management Division,
They define principles, rules and standards, and the specific processes that must be adherad to in
order 1o effectively manage risk al the Nemura Group, The Risk Management Divigion has
established a risk policy framewark to promaote apprapriate standards and consistency for risk policies
ard procedures and to articulate the principles and procedures conducive fo effective risk
management. All fisk management policies and procedures are developed in line with this palicy
framework and a defined process is followed far any exceptions

The Company’s qualitative and quantitative risk management

Market Rigk

Market risk is the rigk of loss arising from fluctuations in values of financial assets and liabilities
{including off balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, prices of securities and others). Effective management of this risk requires the ability
to analyse a complex and evolving portfolio in a constantly changing global market environment,
identify problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner. The
Company seeks to minimise the market risks by entening into dervative agreaments to econamically

hedge the exposures in its loans and medium term notes, The maturity structure of the derivatives
corresponds with the maturity of the medium term notes being hedged.

Interast Rate and Equity Price Risk

It is the policy of the Company to hedge interest rate and equity price exposures via the use of interest
rate derivatives, cross currency defivatives of edquity swaps.

112/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Caompany raises funding with short-term or long-term borrowings through the issuance of medium
term notes, The Compary funds the desired currencies at bath fiked and floating rates of interest and
then uses both interest rate and currency dervatives to generate the desired inferest rate hedge
prafile. This will irvolve matching the coupan dates an both the assets and liabilities where relevant

Apphying the above hedging policy on interest rate expasure, the Company does not have a significant
interest rate exposure as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017

Currency Exposure

Currency exposures are comprised of the monetary assels and monstary liabilities of the Company
that are not denominated in the functional currency of the Company. All material net cumency
exposure arising from activities of the Company is actively hedged using foreign exchange related
derivatives andfor currency denvatives

It is the policy of the Company not to trade currency exposure, therefore, all curmency denvative
transactions are enterad into with the intention of hedging only.

Applying the above hedging policy on cumency exposure, the Company does not have a significant
currency exposure as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017

Credit Risk

Cradit sk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from an abligor's default, insolvency or administrative proceeding
which results in the obligor's failure to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agresed
terms. This includes both on and off-balance sheet expasures. Itis also the risk of loss ansing through
a credit valuation adjustment associated with deterioration in the creditworthiness of a counterparty.

The measuremeant, monitoring and management of credit risk at the Momura Group are governed by a
set of global policies and procedutes, Credit Risk Management ("CRM®), a global function within the
Risk Manmagement Division, is responsible for the implementation and mainienance of these palicies
and procedures. Credit risk 5 managed by CRM together with vanous glabal and regional msk
committees. This ensures transparency of material credit risks and compliance with established credit
limits, the approval of material extersions of credit and the escalation of nsk concentrations to
appropriate senior managerment

As the Company's loans and denvative financial instruments are traded exclusively with the MNomura
Graup, credit risk is minimised.

Cradit quality of financial asssls

The Caompany considerad the credit rating of the Nomura Group as the same credit rating receved by
MNHI from Standard & Poor's Intermaticnal LLC which is A-. As of the Managing Directors' reporting
date, there has been no change in the aforementioned credit rating

The Company has no financial assets that are either past due or impaired.

Cradit nsk expasure

The table below shows the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as of the statement of
financial position date. Certain off-balance sheet ingtruments which expose the Company to a nsk of
loss due to default by the parties underlying these contracts are also disclosed

As of
March 2018 March 2017
Milliors of JPY Milliars of JPY
Derivative financial assets (Mote 13) 150,353 131,566
Cash and cash equivalerts (Mate 14) 422 225
Other debtors 2,185,908 1,832 993
Cash coltateral received (Mote 20) (1.937) (2.010)
Total exposure to credit nsk 2,334 745 1,962 774

113/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credit Risk Mitigation Technigues

As menticned previously, the Company enters into ISDA master agreements or equivalent
agreements (called "Master Netting Agreements”) to mitigate its exposure to credit less, The impact of
offsefting financial assets and financial liabilties which are subject fo these agreements is not
reflected in the staterment of financial position

impaired financizl assets
The Company assessas whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired at
each statement of financial position date as described in MNote 2.3 ) above,

All lozans are transacted with the Momura Group. Mo impairment loss on loans has been recognised for
the year ended 31 March 2018 or the prior periods.

Liguigity Ris}

Liguidify Risk Managament

The Momura Group defines liquidity risk as the nsk of loss ansing from difficulty in securing the
necessary funding or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due o deterioration
of Momura Group's creditworthiness or deterioration in market conditions. This risk could arise from
MNomura-specific or market-wide events such as inability to access the secured or unsecured debt
markets, a deterioration in the Nomuwra Group credit ratings, a failure to manage unplanned changes
in funding requirements, a failure to liquidate assetz quickly and with mimal logs in value, or
changes in regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different
Momura group entities. Liquidity rsk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite formulated
by the EMB. Momura Group's liquidity risk management, under market-wide stress and in addition,
under the Momura Group specific stress, seeks to ensure enough continuous liquidity to meet all
funding requirements and unsecured debt obligations across one year and 30-day periods
respectively without raising funds through unsecured funding of thraugh the liquidation of assets,

The Memura Group has in place a number of Liguidity Risk Management frameworks that enable the
Momura Group o achieve its primary liquidity objective, These frameworks include (1) Centralized
Contral of Residual Cash and Maintenance of Liguidity Partfalio; (2) Utilization of Unencumbered
Assets as Part of Liquidity Portfolio; (3) Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources
ard Matunties Commensurate with the Composition of Assets; (4) Management of Credit Lines to the
Nomura Group Entities; (S) Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tests, and (8) Contingency Funding
Plan.

The EMBE has the autharity to make decisions concerming the Nomura Group liquidity management
The CFOQ of NHI has the operational authority and responsibility over the Momura Group's liquidity
management based on decisions made by the EME

The Company is fully integrated into the Nomura Group's Liquidity Risk Management framewarks
given its primary rale as the funding vehicle of the Nomura Group.

The maturity profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitored and managed by
Global Treasury of the Momura Group to avoid arny concentration of funding by maturity and source.
The distribution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order to
ensure access to funds and to aveid a concentration of funding at any one time or from any one
SOUGE.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Operational Risk

The Momura Group defines aperational risk {the "Operational Risk”) as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events. It excludes
strategic risk (the risk of loss as a result of poor strategic business decisions), but includes the risk of
breach of legal and regulatory requirements, and the risk of damage to Nomura Group's reputation if
caused by an operational risk

The Three Lines of Defence

The Nomura Group adopts the industry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
operational risk, comprising the following elements:

1) 1st Line of Defence: The business which owns and manages its risks

2) 2nd Line of Defence: The Operational Risk Management ("ORM") function, which defines and
co-ordinates the operational risk, framework and its implementaticn provides challenge to the 1st Line
of Defence

3) 3rd Line of Defence: Internal and External Audit, who provide independent assurance

Oparational Risk Managemant Framework

An Operational Risk Management Framework has been established in order to allow the Nomura
Group to identify, assess, manage, monitor and report on operaticnal risk. The GIRMC, with
delegated authority from the EMB has formal oversight over the management of operational risk.

The ORM framework consists of 1) Infrastructure of the framewaork, 2) Products and Services and 3)
Outputs. The Compary is fully integrated into Momura Group's ORM framework.

Below are the measures taken to control the main operational risks which form Preducts and Servicas
in the ORM framework:

- Risk and Confrol Self-Assessment: This process is used to identify the inherent risks the business
faces, the key controls associated with those nisks and relevant actions to mitigate the residual nisks.

+ Scenaro Analysis: This process is used to assess potentially high impact, low likelihood tail nisks,
and where the process identifies the need 1o do so, agree achions o improve contralks,

- Event Reporting: This process s used to identify and repart any event which resulted in or had the
potential to result in @ loss or gain or other impact associated with inadequate or failed internal
processes people and systems, of from extermal events

- Key Risk Indicators: These are the metrics used to monitor the business’ exposure to operational
risks and trigger appropriate responses as thresholds are breached.

23. Fair Value
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instrumeants

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and currert financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost including Borrowing from affifiates fairly approximate their fair values, since they are short-term in
nature and contain limited credit risk. Below tables include companson of the canrying amounts and
fair values of pon-current loans and advances to afiiliates and non-current debt issued and other
borrowing.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of March 2018

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Millions of  Millions of
Millions of JFY JEY JEY
Loans and advances to affiiates 223946 226013 -
Debt issued and other borrowing 917,759 861,392 -
As of March 2017
Carrying
amount Fair value
_ Level2 Level 2
Millions of  Millions of
Millions of JFY JEY JPY
Loans and advances to affiiates 240971 232305 -
Debt izsued and other borrowing BE2 B48 BO5, 719 1,276

For financial azsets camied at amortised cost which have a matunity of mere than one year from the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows using the
prevailing rates from the active markets. Credit risk and seniority of the relevant loans are taken into
consideration in determining the fair value of the loan

For financial liatilities carned at amortised cost having a maturity of more than one year from the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on price guotations at the
statement of financial position date. These quotations are based on techniques for which all inputs
that have a significant effect on the fair value are cbservable either directly or indirectly, as well as
technigues which use inputs not based on observable market data.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The following table presents information about the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities

measufed at fair value within the fair value hierarchy on a recurning basis, based on the transparency
of inputs into the valuation techniques used by the Company to determine such fair values
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The following tables show a reconciliation of al movements in the fair value of financial instruments
categorised within Level 3 between the beginning balances and the ending balances as of the reporting

penod
March 2018
Financial liabilities
designated at fair
Darivative Deerivatve value through
financial assets  financial liabilities profit of loss
Millicns of JPY Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 43,742 44,240 47,293
Total gains in the staternent of
comprehensive income’ ! 17,820 17 622 1,284
Mew Issues - - & 158
Setfernents 308 (4,1589) (2,203)
Transfers 6,314 5,002 12,246
Transfers out (4.143) (4,697) (31,658)
Ending balance 60,724 61,308 35,232
Total unrealised gains/(losses)
far the period included in the
statement of comprehensive
income far instrumants held at
the end of the reporting period 33108 (32.534) 519
March 2017
Derivatie Derteative Financial liabilities
financial assets  financial liabilities  designated at fair
value through
profit of loss
Millians of JPY Millions of JPY Milions of JPY
Beginning balance 38,849 |.142 38,239
Total gains/{lossas) in the
staterment of comprehensive
incoma'"! 1,955 1,381 (402)
Mew lssues - - 38,600
Setfernents 442 2070 [30,388)
Transters 6,205 5,230 1,550
Transfers out (3.558) (3.563) (308)
Ending balance 43,742 44,240 47,203
Total unrealised gains/(losses)
far the period included in the
statement of comprehensive
income for instruments held at
the end of the reporting period 4, 763 (5.473) (775)

1) For assels, posithve balances represent gains, negative balances represent losses. For linbilities. positve balances represent
logses, negative balances represent gains.

Total gains and losses on financial denvatives included in the above table are included under Net
trading income in the statement of comprehensive income. Total gains and losses on financial labilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss included in the above table are included under Net joss on
financial fabiites designated al fair value through prafit or oss in the statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, there were na financial assets and financial
liabilities recogrised at fair value undar Level 1. Thus, na fransfers occumed between Leval 1 and Level 2,

The Compary assurmes that all transfers of financial instrurments from one level to another level within
the Fair value hierarchy ccour at the beginning of the relevant penad inwiich the transfer takes place
Amounts reported above therefore represent the fair value of the financial instruments at the
beginning of the relevant quarter when the transfer was made. For previgus period, the assumption
was all transfers of financial instruments from one level to another level within the fair value hierarciy
ocourred at the beginning of the relevant period in which the transfer takes place. As discussed in
Note 2.5, the measuwement frequency change did not have material impact on the profit and loss
recognition of Day1 reserves for the year ended 31 March 2018,

Valuation techniques

The Company has only over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, which are valued using internal models using market trangactions and other market
evidence whenever possible, including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market
clearing ransactions, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels
of price transparency. Valuation techniques include simple discounted expected cash flow techniques,
Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo simulations. OTC derivatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, are classified within Level 2 of the fair value herarchy when all of the significant inputs
can be corraborated to market evidence.

Derivatives that are valued using models with significant unobservable inputs such as correlation,
long-dated volatility, or other unobsenable inputs are classified within Level 3. Examples of derivatives
classified as Level 3 by the Compary include exatic interest rate derivatives, exotic fareign exchange
derivatives, exotic equity derivatives, exatic derivatives including a combination of interest rate, foreign
exchange and equity risks and certain other transactions including long-dated or exotic credi
derivalives,

Valuation techniques may rely on parameters which are not cbeervable in the market due to an
absence of equivalent, current, market transactions or observable market data, These valuation
techmiques are based on assumptions. As a result, the fair value calculated using these valuation
techimgues will changes if the underying assumptions change.

For the year endad 31 March 2018, a total of JFY 6,814 million of financial assets (2017 JPY 6,205
million) and a total of JFY B002 milion of financial lakdites (2017 JPY 6,230 million) were
transferred into Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarily JEY
6,431 million of equity derivatives (2017 comprised primarily JPY 6,196 million of equity derivatives)
which were transferred inio Level 3 because cerain valatilities and correlations became unabsarvable
or the sgnificance of unobserable paramelers increased. On the financial liabilities side the
transferred amounts comprised primarily JPY 6 431 million of equity darvatives (2017 comprised
primarily JPY 6,196 million of equity derivatives) which were transferred into Level 3 because cerlain
volatilties and correlations became unobservable or the significance of unobservable parameters
increased.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, a total of JPY 4,143 million of financial assets (2017 JPY 3,558
millicn) and a total of JPY 4697 milion of financial labilities (2017 JPY 3,563 million) were
transferred cut of Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarilby
JPY 3040 milion of equity dervatives (2017 comprised primarily JPY 2 245 million of interest rate
derivatives and JPY 1,300 million of cross currency interest rate derivatives) which were transferred
out of Level 3 because cemtain volatilities and cormelations became observable of the significance of
unobservable parameters decreased. On the financial liabilties side the transferred amounts
compriged primarily JPY 3,040 million of equity derivatives (2017 comprised primarily of JPY 2,249
million of interest rate derivatives and 1,300 million of equity derivatives) which were transfermed out of
Level 3 becauvse cerain volatiiies and correlations became observable or the significance of
unobservable parameters decreased.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Valuation processes

The Compary is fully integrated into Momua Group's governance framewark which mandates
determination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functions independent
of the businesses assuming the nisk of the financial instrument in order to ensure the appropnateness
of any fair value measuremert of a financial instrument used within these financial statements
including those classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy

The functions within the MNomura Group for either defining, implementing or maintaining valuation
policies and procedures are as follows.

« The Product Control Valuatiors Group ("PCVGET) within Momura's Finance Department has
primary responsibility to determine and implerment valuation policies and procedures in
connection with determination of fair value measurements. In paricular, this group will ensure
that valuation policies are decumented for each type of financial instrument. Momura Group's
businesses price the financial instruments of the Company, the PCVG independently verifies or
validates these prices, In the event of a difference in opinion ar where the estimate of fair value
requires judgement, the valuabion used within these financial statements is made by senior
managers independent of the trading businesses. This group repors to the Global Head of
Praduct Cantral and ultimately to the CFO of the Nomura Group,

= The Accounting Policy Group within Momura’s Finance Department defines the Group's
accounting policies and procedures, including those associated with determination of fair value
This group repers to the Global Head of Accounting Policy and ultimately to the CFO of the
Momura Group, and

«  The Glabal Madel Validation Group ("MVGET) within Nomura's Risk Management Departrment
validates the appropriateness and consistency of pricing models used to determine fair value
measwements independently of those who design and build the models. The group reports to
the CRO.

Indspendant price verificalion processes

The key abjective of the independent price verification processes within the Nomura Graup is to verify
the appropriatenass of fair value measurements applied to all financial nstrumeants within the MNomura
Group. In applying these contral processes, observable inputs are used whenever possible and when
unabsaervable inputs are necessary, the processes seek o ensure the valuation technigue and inpuls
are appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied.

The independent price verification processes aim to venfy the fair value of all positions to external
levels on a regular basis. The process involves obtaining data such as trades, marks and prices from
internal and external sowces and examining the impact of marking the internal positions at the
external prices. Margin disputes within the collateral process are also investigated to determine if
there is any impact on valuations.

Where third-party pricing information sourced from brokers, dealers and consensus pricing services is
used as part of the price verification process, consideration is given as to whether that information
reflects actual recent market transactions or prices at which transactions involving identical or similar
financial instruments are curently executable. If such transactions or prices are not available, the
financial instrument will generally be classified in Level 3.

Where there is a lack of observable market information around the inputs used in a fair value
measurement, then the PCVG and the MVG will assess the reasonableness of inputs used,
considering available information including comparable products, surfaces, curves and past trades.
Additional valuation adjustments may be taken for the uncerainty in the inputs used, such as
correlation and where appropriate trading desks may be asked to execute trades to evidence market
levels,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Quantitative information regarding significant unobservable inputs and assumptions

The following table presents information about the significant unobservable inputs and assumptions
used for financial instruments classified as Level 3, These financial instruments also typically include
ocbservable valuation inputs (i.e. Level 2 valuation inputs) which are not included in the lable,

The fallowing fable shows valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value measurements of Level
3 financial assets and financial liabilities:

Fair value as of

March 2018
Milligns of JPY
Significant Rangea of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Assets Liabilities _ technique{s) inputs inputs"’
Fareign exchange
related dervabives 8,883 8883 Discounted Valatilities]%] 14,9215 54%
Cash Flow
("DCFOption
Model
Interest rate deriatives 45,095 A5 BTH DCFMOption Interast rates. 0.17-2.93%
Model Violatilites]%) 11,22-15,58%
Volatilities[op] 33 4862 &1
Correlations -0.25-0.98
(1010 1.0
Equity deriv atives 5713 5713 DCFIOption Dividend yield 00-5 54%
Meodel Volatilises[3] 7.31-50,94%
Correlations -0.75-0.89
(10t 1.0y
Credit dervatives 33 33 DCF Credit Spreads 0.15-1.00%
Recovery Rates 35-35%
Financial labilties - 35232 DCFMOption Interest rates. 017-2.81%
designated at fair value Model Violatilities]%] 11.22-15.54%
through prafit or loss Volatlities(bp] 33.45-54.93
Correlations -0.25-0.89
(1.0t 1.00
Tatal 60,724 95,540
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Fair value as of

Mareh 2017
Millicns of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Agsets Liabilities technique(s) inputs inputs'
Fareign exchange
related derivatives 1,388 1,389 DCFOption aolatilities[36] 15.01-15.63%
Model
Interest rate dervatives 37,892 38,390 DCFIOption Interest rates 0.133.04%
Model Valatilites]%] 12 42.45.63%
Volatilities[bp] 38 446147
Correlations -0.51-0.88
(1.0t 1.0y
Equity derwvatives &,.480 4,450 DCFDplion Devidend yield Q00-5.31%
model Walatilites[%] 7.60.81,068%
Comelations -0.76-0.86
(1.0t 1.00
Credit dervatives 1 1 DCF  Credit Spreads 0150.85%
Recovery Rates 35.35%
Financial labilities . 47,203 CCFOption Interest rates 013-3.04%
designated at fair value Model Valatilibes[%)] 1242-15.61%
through profit or loss Volahlities[bp) 38.44-81.47
Correlations 0.35-0.88
(101810
Total 43,742 91,533

1) Range information is provided in percentages, coefScients and represents the highest and lowest bevel significant
inotservable valualion input used b value that type of fimancial mstrument. A wide @spersion in the range does nel
necessarily reflect increased uncenainty or subjecthity in the valuation input and is typically just a consequence of the
different characteristics of the financial Mstruments themsshes,

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments fluctuate in response to a vanety of factors,
including, but not limited to general market sentiment, credit, interest rate, foreign exchange and
correlation rigk, current values may continue to decrease if conditions deteriorate further. Conversely,
should conditions improve; an increase in the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expected.
However, management does not anticipate a significant impact in the net fair value of Level 3 financial
instruments.

As the Compary enters into derivative transactions to hedge its exposures in medium term notes, the
increase or decrease in the value of the Level 3 portfalio will nat significantly impact its profits and
losses. Hedging derivative instrumernts offset the positions ansing from the derivatives which are
embedded in the debt instruments and limit the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unabservable
inputs related to these financial instruments

For each class of inancial instrument described in the above tables, changes in each of the significant
unabsarvable inputs and assumptions used by the Comparry will impact upon the determination of a
fair value measurement for the fnancial instrument. The sensitivity of these Level 3 fair value
measurements to changes in unobservable inputs and interrelationships betwaen thase inputs are
descnbed below:

Dernvalives - Where the Company is long the underying risk of a derivative, significant increases
(decreases) in the underying of the dervative, such as interast rates or cradit spreads in isclation or
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significant decreases (increases) in dividend yields wauld result in a significantly higher (lawer) fair
value measuremant. Where the Comparny is short the underlying risk of a derivalive, the impact of
these changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measurements repored by the
Carnpany.

Where the Company s long optionality, recovery rates or comrelation, significant increases
(decreases) in volatiities, recovery rates or correlation will generally result in a significantly higher
(lower) fair value measurement. Where the Company is short optiorality, recovery rates or correlation,
the impact of these changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measurements,

Financial habilies designated af far value through proft or loss — When financial liabilties
designated at fair value through profit or loss contain embedded features, embedded features alter
the return to the investor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a refum that
depends upon some other variables, such as an equity or equity index, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, credit rating of a third party or 2 more complex interest rate.

Given that the financial derivatives are held for riek management purposes to offset movement from such
financial liabilities designated at fair value through peofit or loss, sensitivity of the fair value of the financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss to changes in unobservable inputs are expected to
be in the opposite direction of those of the dervatives.

There iz no predictable interrelationzhip between significant unobservable inputs for Level 3 financial
instruments.

The table below shows the expected impact on fair value of Level 3 products when alternative values
that are calculated by increasing urnderlying risks to a certain extert are used for unobservable inputs.

Az of March 2018

Millions of JPY
Foreign exchange related derivatives 4 005
Interest rate derivatives 358,414
Equity derivatives 1,876
Tatal A4, 295

Products wsing unabsenvable inputs are classified as Level 3 when expected impact above a certain
percertage of the fair value are expectad in the independent price verification process.

The above impact iz derived only from the dervvatives and can be a gain or loss in profit or loes
depending on the movement of inputs. It is thought that expected impact in the opposite direction is
generated from the Esued notes in general but it is not included in the table.

The aggregation of the risk is gross, and depending on the moverment of the market, there is a possibility
that expected impact amount may be overstated.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and losses generated from the use of waluation techniques with signficant unobsenable
parameters are deferred over the life of the contract until parameters become observable or when the
instrument is derecogrised. Changes in fair value after inception are recognised in the profit or loss
account. The tatal fair value atinbutable to these financial instruments that is yet to be recognised in the
prefit or loss account as of the statement of financial postion date is JPY 625 million gain (2017 JPY
1,284 milicn gain). The following table shows a reconcilistion of movements in the day 1 gains and
losses between the beginning balances and the ending balances.

125/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of
March 2018 March 2017
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance gain 1,264 Ti0
Merw transactions a5 08
Amounts recognesed in profit or loss dunng the year (T34) (354)
Ending balance gain 625 1,264

24. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides a summary of financial assets and finarngial labities subject to the
Master Metting Agreements and similar agreaments

As of March 2018

Millions of JPY
Related amounts not set off in
the statement of financial
pasition
Gross
amounts  Amounts
Gross amounts  offsetin presented
of recognised the im the
financial balance balance Financial Cash Met

assetsfliabilities™  sheet shaet instruments™  collateral™  Amount
Derivative
financial assets 87,382 - 67,362 (65,545) {1,733) -
Loans and advances to
affiliates 202 547 - 202,647 - - 202 847
Other assets 18,220 - 19,220 {16,603 - 2,538
Total financial assets

289,249 - 258,249 (82,341) {1,733 2051475

Derivative financial
liakilities 141 885 - 141,805 (82 341) (58, S54) -
Total financial
liabilities 141,895 - 141,895 (82,341) (59,554) -
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#.52‘ March 2017
Millions of JPY

Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial

position
Gross
amounts Amounts
Gross amounts  offset in prasented
af recognised the im thae
financial balance balance Financial Cash MNet
asialsﬂﬁ.hiliﬁas‘ sheet sheet instruments®  collateral™ Amount

Dervative
financial assets 68, 653 . 65,653 (65,734) (200 o33
Loans and
advances to affiliates 358 42 - 358 262 - - 358 202
Other assets 7.710 7.710 7515 - 195
Total financial assets 434 685 - 434 685 (T3,249) {2,010) 350,426
Deerivative
financial liabilities 67,232 . a7.232 (73,248) (23,833) 1
Total financial
liabilities E?|2_$E - ﬂ?éﬁ? lﬁ@ﬂl&] [23 B&E! 101

1) The bifurcated embedded derivatives are excluded.

2] Those represent amoums which are nol permilbed to e off$sl on the face of the balance shesl bul which provide the
Company with the righl of offsel i the event of counlerparty default, inscivency of bankniplcy.

3} The cash collabéral receised sgaing? the posilive mark 1o mafks! walues of deratives and the cash collaleral pladged
towards the negafive mark to makel values of derialives are repofed under Oiber iabites and Olfer assais
respectively,

The Compary enfered into ISDA Master Agreements with all derivative counterparties which grant the
Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The
Company also entered into On Balance Sheet and Off Balance Sheet Master Netting Agreements
with one of the counterparties which grant the Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty
default, insohvency or bankruptcy. These arrangements reduce credit risk exposure relative to what
the credit exposure would be if the same courterparty were liable for their gross exposures on the
same underlying contracts.

Usually, netting arrangements are constituted by a master netting agreement which specifies the
general terms of the agreement between the counterparties, including information on the basis of the
netting calculation, types of collateral, the definition of default and other termination events, the
calculation of damages (on default) and documentation required. The Master MNetting Agreement
contains the terms and conditions by which all (or as many as possible) relevant transactions between
the counterparties are governed. Multiple individual tramsactions are subsumed under this general
master netting agreement, forming a single legal contract under which the counterparties conduct
their relevant mutual business. In addition to the mitigation of credt rsk, placing individual
transactions under a single master netting agreement that provides for netting of transactions in scope
also helps to mitigate settlement risks associated with transacting in multiple jurisdictions or across
multiple cortracts.

25, Capital management policy
The objective of the Compary's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company has an

appropriate level of capital, being issued capital and issued medium term notes and borrowing from
affiliates.
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The Company reviews the approprate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate
capital will take into consideration the financing needs and kqudity pesition of the Maomura Group.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year

As of
March 2018 March 2017
Milliors of JPY Millions af JPY
Issued and paid-up capital 5,704 6113
Share premium 1321 1,341
Reserve 1,604 2288
Tatal issued capital 9723 9723
Dbt issued and other Borrowing 1,021,085 940,752
- Mon-current M7, 7E8 862 648
- Current 103 327 7E104
Financial iabilities designated at fair value thraugh
profit or loss 774,140 T03,045
- Mon-gurrent 511,809 216,574
= Current 262,33 186,471
Borrowing from affiliates 454 738 267 003
- MNon-current . -
= Gurrent 494 758 267 003
Total ssued capital, medium term notes and
borrowing from affiliates 2,299 747 1,920 523

26. Related parties

Same as disclosed in elsewhere of these financial statements, the Company had the following material
transactions with related parties during the pericd

a. Transactions with the parent

i. The Company entered into loan agreements with MNHI and earned interest income of JFY
9,503 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2047 JPY 8,605 million). As of 31 March
2018, total outstanding loan to NHI amounied to JPY 1,251 400 milkon (2017: JPY 699,300
million). The outstanding balance i unsecured. Mo impaiment logs on the loans and
advances to NHI has been recognised for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017

ii. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with MHI, as one of the guarantors of the
Company notes, whereby the Company has agreed to pay a fee (Refer to Mote 4) based on
the average outstanding amount of the notes dunng the relevant calculation period. JEY 739
million guarantee fees were reported under Fes and commission sxpense for the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017 JPY 700 milion). Az of 31 March 2018, the guarantee fee payable to
MHI is JEY 739 million (2017 JPY 700 million).

iii. Imaccordance with the Uinitateral APAs (Refer to Mote 10), the Company agreed to pay the
adjustment amount resulting from the ARPA to NHI. The adjustment amount of JPY 7 586
millicn (2017 JPY 5 888 milkon) was reported under General and adminislralive expanses
A5 of 31 March 2018, JPY 58 million due to NHI is recognised under Other labilities (2017

JEY 1,048 million)
tv. The Compary incurred service fee of JPY 437 milion for NHI information technology

infrastructure support and other services for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017 JFY 43
million), This expense is reported under General and administrative expenses in the
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statement of comprehensive income. As af 31 March 2018, the service fee payable to NHI
i JPY 239 milkan (2017 JPY 31 millian),

b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As af 31 March 2018, the Company had two Managing Directors who were seconded from the
Mamura Group, Mo remuneration to the managing directors was chargeable to the Company for
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

¢. Transactions with other related parties

i. The Company entered into loan agreements with other related parties and earned interest
income of JPY 19,070 million for the year ended 31 March 20r18 (31 March 2017: JPY 17,365
million) (Refer to Mate 3). All outstanding balances are unsecured. Mo impairment loss on the
Ioans and advances to affiliates has been recognised for the years ended 31 March 2018
and 31 March 2017

i. The Company entered into bomowing agreements with other related parties and incurred
interest expense (Refer to Note 3).

i, The Company entered into derivative fransactions with other related parties under 1SDA
Master Agreements. As of 31 March 2018, derivative financial assels and derivative financial
liabilities with other related parties amounted ta JFY 67 382 milian and JFY 141 895 million,
respectively (31 March 2017, dervative financial assets - JPY 68,368 million and denvative
financial liabilties - JPY 96,917 milion). Under IISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related
parties, the Company posts and receives cash collateral related to denvative transactions
(Fefer to note 15 and 20},

iv. The Comparny didn’t eam interest income from deposits placed to the current account of a
related party bank (Refer to MNote 3) and does not have outstanding balance deposited with
this refated party bank as of 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 zera)

v, As of 31 March 2018, total outstanding balance of dabt issued by the Compary held within
the Nomura Group for iguidity or market making purposes amounted to JPY 14,674 million
(2017: JFY 13,554 million) of which JBY 10,854 million classified under Debt issued and ofher
borrovang (31 March 2017 JPY 11,459 million) and JPY 3,780 million under Financial
liatiities desigrated af fair value through profit or ioss (371 March 2017, JPY 2,085 million).

wi, The Company entered into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties in the Momura
Group, as guarantors of the Company notes, whereby it has agreed to pay a fee (Refer to
Mate 4) based an the average outstanding amount of the nates durng the relevant calculation
pernad, JFY 8 milion guarantes fees were charged to Feg and commisson expense for the
yvear ended 31 March 2018 (2017 JFY 10 millicn). As of 31 March 2018, the guarantee fee
payable to the other related parly is JFY & milion (2017 JPY 10 million).

wvil. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company incurred service fees amourting to JPY
123 millicn to certain related parbes for provision of operational support which are reported
under Genaral and admiristralive expensas in the statement of comprehansive INcCome
(2017 JPY 8BS millior).

viiL The Company entered into a2 dealer agreement with other related party who underwrites
motes issued by the Company including the notes dassified under Financial Nabilities
dasignated at fair value through profit or joss. The Company economically
structured nature of the notes by entering derivative transactions with another other related
party. Gain or loss anising from the notes was recognised under Net loss on financial
liabilithes designated af far value through profit or loss while gain or less arising from
dertvative transactions was recognised under Nel lrading income.

ix. The Company placesireceives Cash colfaleral tofrom derivalive counterparties related to
dervative transactions and incumed interest (Refer to Mote 15 and Nate 207,
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27. Events after the reporting period

Changes in the compasition of the Managing Directors
Yuji Yamasaki resigned as President and Managing Director of the Company effective 2 May 2018,

The shareholder appointed Hiroyuki Muromachi as the new President and Managing Director of the
Company effective 2 May 2018.
28. Appropriation of result - Management proposal

The management proposes o add the total gain for the year ended 31 March 20418 of JPY 2 154 million
to the retained earnings. This proposal has been reflected in the accounts.

13 July 2018

Managing Directors

Hiroyuki Murgmachi Yuko Demato

OTHER INFORMATION

Auditor’s report

The report of the audtors, Ermst & Young Accountants LLP, is presented on page 6.
Appropriation of result - Provision in the Company's articles of association

In acoordance with Article 20 of the Company’s articles of association, the net result shall be free at the
digposal of the General Meeting.
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2018 31
2017 2012 29 6,600 6,600
:6301)
2013 12 2,930 2,930
2018
2013 10 23 5,340 5,340
2018 10
2013 10 23 5,557 5,557
2018 10
2013 12 19 1,700 1,700
2018 12
2013 12 19 852 4,000 852 4,000
2018 12
2014 27 5,900 5,900
2019
2019 2014 17 45 45
)( )
2019
NEXT FuNDs gpx | 2014 18 3,267 3,267
400 (
1591)
2019 2014 22 33 2,000 33 2,000
)
2019 2014 16 74 6,000 5,400 73 600
)

135/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

0000000
2019 12 2014 12 15 25 3,000 25 3,000
)
2020 2018 23 85 2,600 85 2,600
( )(
)
2020 2018 23 80 8,200 80 8,200
( )
114 29 30 31
30 25
115 30 30 30
30 14
30 14 30 26
24 19
14

136/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

20

137/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

2019
NEXT FUNDS JPX 400 (
1591)
€))
2014 18
)
3,267
©)]
)
12
®)
@)
)
NEXT FUNDS JPX 400
®)
39,189,425 (30 )
30 10 EDINET
2019
NEXT FUNDS JPX 400 (

1591)

138/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NEXT FUNDS JPX 400

@

29 10 30
30 27

@

12

139/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

200
200
€H)
( ) NEXT NOTES ETN
( ) NEXT NOTES ETN
( ) NEXT NOTES KOSPI ETN
( ) NEXT NOTES KOSPI ETN
c)y )
@
1964 31 100
1990 2,838.07
200
200 200 1990
100
200
200 200

2007 1,000

140/200



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn
200
200
2006 14,944.77
- 2006 26,650.28
200 200
2010 22 217.81
200 200
- 2009 16 1,062.83

HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x
(HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T): m
HSILI(T-1): Q)
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1)
x  (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1)  x Stamp Duty } ]

HSISI(T): m
HSISI(T-1): Q)
K: 1
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
TRHSI(T):
TRHSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50
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200
L(T) = L(T-D)x [1 + {Kx (F(M)/F(-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } 1]

L(T): @) 200

L(T-1) : @) 200
K: 2

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200

200
I(T) = I(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (F(T)/F(T-1) - 1) + (Kx 0.85) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

1(T): m 200

1(T-1) : m 200
K: 1

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
18,621.28 20,188.97 25,020.79 16,748.69 25,374.67
12,727.99 14,247.32 12,699.12 9,874.67 14,011.07
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
23,293.48 25,374.67 25,168.61 30,841.69 29,883.33 27,753.45
22,382.95 22,953.20 22,425.81 26,166.92 24,231.82 24,857.31
Bloomberg
)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
9,980.17 9,051.53 8,326.57 9,038.74 7,015.23
8,039.78 7,269.36 6,289.54 6,516.88 4,929.88
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
5,268.48 5,193.73 5,234.45 4,836.67 4,983.72 4,887.04
5,162.98 4,929.88 4,933.73 4,447.28 4,515.26 4,612.25
Bloomberg
)
200
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
280.59 266.45 262.63 230.56 376.03
203.23 206.87 171.49 172.24 226.50
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
364.58 376.03 355.03 371.77 361.41 337.82
341.19 345.82 331.72 343.43 301.52 300.28
Bloomberg
)
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200
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
973.03 968.06 1,061.55 1,035.71 887.36
819.91 848.07 853.37 889.94 689.12
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
724.08 719.45 732.58 714.33 762.53 762.55
700.62 689.12 710.03 686.00 695.91 717.88
Bloomberg
)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
21,287.61 17,282.81 18,661.12 16,245.14 16,844.20
11,789.05 13,008.66 12,892.62 12,689.91 14,437.73
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
16,581.09 16,559.52 16,642.52 17,349.46 17,007.20 15,950.66
16,041.68 16,126.51 15,506.26 16,425.47 15,539.52 14,943.01
Bloomberg
)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
7,440.81 6,843.90 6,609.49 6,650.32 6,114.68
5,743.28 5,864.94 5,616.84 5,851.50 5,639.84
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
5,777.12 5,758.32 5,870.27 5,696.25 5,851.31 5,964.20
5,681.21 5,683.17 5,664.88 5,546.42 5,597.11 5,769.70
Bloomberg
)
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
19,673.33 19,692.15 7,657.50 1,831.24 2,062.91
12,373.64 7,251.21 1,639.20 769.87 1,031.06
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
1,726.03 1,960.16 2,062.91 2,200.90 2,150.91 1,987.06
1,450.48 1,745.72 1,761.02 2,001.31 1,643.56 1,646.55
Bloomberg
)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
6,317.46 7,331.00 11,676.76 15,713.56 8,021.12
4,699.46 4,631.99 6,349.01 6,269.31 5,450.03
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
6,600.47 5,996.40 5,929.11 5,517.95 6,049.64 6,010.09
6,034.15 5,643.86 5,450.03 5,272.32 5,317.23 5,437.94
Bloomberg
)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
128,730.71 97,741.36 50,080.55 35,750.10 11,287.72
47,519.52 38,902.54 17,065.71 10,936.15 1,926.18
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
2,534.76 2,587.04 2,348.36 1,911.09 2,490.85 2,355.15
2,212.26 2,198.43 1,926.18 1,713.64 1,823.18 2,041.97
Bloomberg
)
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10
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
1,090.59 1,279.52 1,310.90 1,486.11 2,209.55
705.91 939.37 956.38 938.36 1,442.29
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
1,984.41 2,116.80 2,209.55 2,516.59 2,438.31 2,259.37
1,839.63 1,951.05 2,093.39 2,205.75 2,011.23 1,945.57
Bloomberg
)
11
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
707.10 588.78 544 14 530.48 411.02
548.22 486.78 470.73 405.49 322.40
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
355.95 344.50 331.57 322.66 334.19 336.54
342.24 329.77 322.40 301.55 306.21 313.11
Bloomberg
)
12
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
1,052.95 1,035.34 1,028.38 1,226.42 1,234.02
415.04 635.00 708.12 667.49 955.09
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
1,134.03 1,173.07 1,234.02 1,355.55 1,343.08 1,250.75
1,080.77 1,097.07 1,136.75 1,242.84 1,137.71 1,151.48
Bloomberg
)
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13 STOXX 50
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
4,677.86 5,150.56 5,203.22 4,602.12 5,842.81
3,521.87 3,844.01 3,880.10 3,655.67 4,558.10
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
5,613.57 5,700.11 5,842.81 6,192.48 6,165.07 5,981.46
5,385.31 5,539.82 5,623.39 5,871.14 5,780.96 5,688.08
Bloomberg
)
14 Nifty50 ( )
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
619.83 557.57 474.70 521.60 456.05
520.21 404.60 391.25 411.85 367.90
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
389.00 380.85 384.75 371.60 376.10 390.20
371.45 368.05 367.90 349.80 353.40 372.85
India Index Services & Products Limited Bloomberg
)
15 Nifty50 ( )
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2,435.45 3,989.95 4,264.20 3,660.20 4,617.15
1,717.96 2,095.79 2,824.25 2,319.25 2,977.00
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
4,518.75 4,593.00 4,617.15 5,125.50 5,018.75 4,494 .55
4,109.35 4,294.40 4,215.55 4,528.25 4,418.35 4,087.60
India Index Services & Products Limited Bloomberg
)
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16 S&P500 ( )
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
315.11 366.97 370.75 415.05 487.99
244 .59 292.78 334.63 335.97 403.93
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
463.33 477.13 487.99 517.23 503.65 493.06
451.98 455.96 476.07 487.72 464.71 463.49
Bloomberg
)
17 S&P REIT ( )
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
476.09 457.74 489.01 503.87 593.80
379.57 387.58 406.00 414.17 468.60
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
566.37 577.59 593.80 604.85 598.88 578.57
550.97 567.89 575.68 596.98 561.78 564.07
Bloomberg
)
18 70
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
29,269.04 33,197.05 39,564.81 39,227.86 45,782.80
20,095.17 25,848.62 30,917.41 28,026.49 36,706.29
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
44,454 .12 45,261.72 45,782.80 47,746.38 46,970.93 44,010.72
42,098.70 43,058.55 43,914.54 46,143.58 42,535.82 42,023.31

Bloomberg

)
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19 S&P/JIPX
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
149.418 171.172 218.670 231.460 278.681
101.971 134.962 165.015 174.126 219.578
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
264.401 268.970 278.681 284.104 283.548 268.731
255.115 257.190 267.401 278.063 256.246 258.480
Bloomberg
)
20
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
3,056.399 3,618.247 3,797.710 3,950.453 3,847.177
2,024.811 2,695.723 2,930.985 3,181.302 3,423.293
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
3,548.635 3,624.492 3,634.373 3,849.956 3,796.847 3,728.299
3,483.940 3,452.167 3,583.063 3,616.187 3,591.120 3,636.338
Bloomberg
)
21 Al
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
22,870.89 26,554_88 30,417.57 30,186.35 36,675.01
13,924.55 20,665.33 25,011.42 22,188.60 28,581.10
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
35,761.43 36,492.21 36,675.01 38,373.24 37,533.62 34,567.96
33,778.92 34,886.12 35,425.81 36,955.53 33,881.15 32,744.31
Bloomberg
)
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22 30
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
15,609.02 18,543.86 21,888.47 18,931.34 24,082.17
9,147.71 12,799.38 16,808.16 12,520.14 17,666.71
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
22,536.73 23,437.81 24,082.17 25,957.90 25,020.52 22,620.69
21,438.75 22,584.42 22,858.95 24,691.38 21,978.10 20,800.99
Bloomberg
)
23 50
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
14,430.49 17,286.24 22,962.94 22,303.93 26,078.87
10,112.73 13,102.29 16,641.50 18,832.58 21,746.35
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
25,015.07 25,542.55 26,078.87 26,559.22 26,370.42 25,172.47
23,756.91 24,566.35 25,350.71 25,741.99 24,444 56 24,249 .94
Bloomberg
)
24
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
16,291.31 17,935.64 20,868.03 19,494.53 24,124 .15
10,486.99 13,910.16 16,795.96 14,952.02 18,335.63
2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
10 11 12
22,011.67 22,937.60 22,939.18 24,124 .15 23,486.11 21,968.10
20,400.78 22,028.32 22,177.04 23,098.29 21,154.17 20,617.86
Bloomberg
)
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2017/2018
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( EU-
IFRS ) 2018 3 31
2018 3 31
Audit Firm Supervision Act
(ViO )
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Independent auditor’s report

To: the shareholder of Nomura Europe Finance N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statements 2017/2018 included in the annual report

Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements 2017/2018 of Nomura Europe Finance NV., based in
Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of
Nomura Europe Finance NV. for the year ended 31 March 2018, and of its result and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:
The statement of financial position for the year ended 31 March 2018
The following statements for the year then ended: the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows
The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
Basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance N.V. in accordance with the Wet toezicht
accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid
van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants, a regulation
with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands.
Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregel s accountants (VGBA,
Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our
opinion.
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Materiality
Materiality

Benchmark applied

value through profit or loss

Explanation
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JPY 8,980 million (31 March 2017: JPY 8,219 million)
0.5% of ‘debt issued and other borrowings and ‘financial liabilities designated at fair

We have applied ‘ debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated

at fair value through profit or loss as benchmark as we believe the total balance of

these accounts is the most important metric for the users of the financial statements.

We have also taken misstatements into account and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are
material for the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatements in excess of JPY 449 million, which are
identified during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view
must be reported on qualitative grounds.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors.
The key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Vduation of derivative financia
instruments

We consider the fair value of derivative
financial instruments as disclosed in note
13 to the financial statements as akey
audit matter, due to the relative size of
the accounts as compared to the total
balance sheet and materiality, and given
the inherent complexity of the estimates
with aresulting risk for incorrect
valuation of the related accounts.

The portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance
NV. comprises of non-listed derivatives
where the values are based on valuation
techniques using both market observable
(level 2 positions) and non-market
observable inputs (level 3 positions), as
disclosed in note 23 of the financial
Statements.

We have verified the valuation of
derivatives by testing controlsin place,
including those within the model
validation process and the independent
price verification process. Furthermore,
we tested the most significant valuation
inputs to the valuations by comparison of
these inputs to independently sourced
market rates and performed independent
testing on fair values of positions held.
Additionally, we tested relevant
disclosures for accuracy and

compl eteness.
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Based on our procedures, we consider
the valuation of derivative financia
instruments to be appropriate.

The disclosures on derivative financial
instruments meet the requirements of
EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code.
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Vaduation of financid liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss

We consider the fair value of financial
liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss as disclosed in note
19 to the financial statements as akey
audit matter due to the relative size of
the account as compared to the total
balance sheet and materiality.

The portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance
NV. comprises of financial liabilities
where the values are based on valuation
techniques using both market observable
(level 2 positions) and non-market
observable inputs (level 3 positions), as
disclosed in note 23 of the financial
Statements.

Vauation of loans and advances to
affiliates

We consider the valuation of the loans
and advances to &ffiliates as disclosed in
note 22 and 26 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to
the size of the loan portfolio and given
that an impairment may have a material
effect on the income statement.

Management assesses whether thereis
any objective evidence that afinancial
asset isimpaired.

Based on this assessment, management
has concluded no impairment loss should
be recognized.

We have verified the valuation of
financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit and loss by testing
the related controlsin place at Nomura
Europe Finance NV.. Furthermore we
performed substantive testing of the
valuation, including comparison of
valuation inputs to independently
sourced market rates and assessing
valuation models combined with
independent testing of fair values.
Additionally, we tested relevant
disclosures for accuracy and

compl eteness.

We challenged management’s
assessment as to whether there is any
objective evidence for impairment. We
determined that the related parties were
able to meet their financial obligations
towards Nomura Europe Finance N.V.
throughout the year and through to the

date of this report. The ultimate parent of
Nomura Europe Finance NV., Nomura

Holdings Inc., has an intention to
provide the necessary level of financial
support to its subsidiaries; we assessed
the ability of Nomura Holdings Inc. to
continue as a going concern.

Report on other information included in the annual report
In addition to the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, the annual report contains other

information that consists of:
The managing directors report

Other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

oOoOooodn

Based on our procedures, we consider
the valuation of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss to be appropriate.

The disclosures on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or
loss meet the requirements of EU-IFRS
and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code.

Based on our procedures, we consider
the valuation of loans and advances to
affiliates to be appropriate.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
I's consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our
audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatements. By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is
less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.
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Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the managing directors
report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information pursuant to Part
9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Engagement

We were engaged by the managing directors as auditor of Nomura Europe Finance NV. for the audit of the financial
statements 2017/2018 and have operated as statutory auditor for more than 10 years. The most recent rotation of the signing
external auditor was for the audit of the financial statements 2012/2013. Rotation of the signing external auditor is one of our
safeguards to maintain our auditor independence.

Description of responsibilities for the financia statements

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is
responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks
mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.
Our responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objective isto plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not
have detected all material errors and fraud.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the
audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our audit included e.g.,:
Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures
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Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter isin
the public interest.

Amsterdam, 13 July 2018

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

P.J.A.J. Nijssen
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